
 
NOTICE AND AGENDA

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
FEBRUARY 23, 2022 - 4:00 P.M.

REGULAR MEETING
CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS

415 W. UNIVERSITY DR. 
EDINBURG, TEXAS 78539

     
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER, ESTABLISH QUORUM

A. Prayer

B. Pledge of Allegiance

2. CERTIFICATION OF PUBLIC NOTICE

3. DISCLOSURE OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS

A. Public Comments are limited to three (3) minutes. If a resident desires to make a
public comment, please notify the Chairperson prior to the start of the meeting. A
spokesperson for large groups is required. We ask for everyone's cooperation in
following these procedures.

5. THE FOLLOWING ARE THE MEETING PROCEDURES USED BY THE ZONING
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT:

 
  A. All items are generally considered as they appear on the agenda, as each item is

introduced.
 
  B. Staff will present its findings and recommendation on the item being considered.
 
  C. The party making the request may make a presentation and may address the Board on

any issues arising during the discussion of the item being considered.
 
  D. Anyone in the audience desiring to speak in favor or in opposition may do so. A 3

minute time limit will be given to each person interested in speaking on the item. The
use of a spokesperson for large groups of people will be required.

 
  E. Once the Chair closes the public hearing, the Board may question anyone and

maintain any discussion which clarifies the proposal and will then take what action it
believes to be appropriate.

 
  F. A minimum of four votes are required for an item to be approved by the Board.



 

6. OTHER BUSINESS
 

A. Consider designating order of Alternate Members

7. MINUTES

A. Consider approval of the Minutes for the January 20, 2022 Regular Meeting

8. PUBLIC HEARINGS

A. Consider Variances to the City’s Unified Development Code: 1) Section 3.301,
Single Family Residential Bulk Standards, Setbacks, and 2) Section 3.505,
Easements and Utilities, Lot 24, Block 2, Olivia Estates Subdivision Section 2,
located at 3719 Ora Street, as requested by Ringo G. Treviño

B. Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Section 2.301 (D) (9),
Fences Facing or Abutting a Golf Course, Lot 4, Los Lagos Phase III Subdivision,
located at 3321 Macquarie Drive, as requested by Adrian Guzman

C. Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Section 3.201(C),
Residential Use District Standards, Density, Lots 1 and 2, Stonebrook Estates
Subdivision, located at 2002 & 2008 Brandi Lane, as requested by Erica Edith
Canales

D. Consider Variances to the City’s Unified Development Code: 1) Section 3.201(C),
Density; 2) Section 3.303, Multifamily Lot and Building Standards, Lot Area; 3)
Section 3.303 Multifamily Lot and Building Standards, Lot Width; 4) Section
10.405, Parking Lot Bufferyards; and 5) Section 9.301, Parking Space Standards,
Driving Aisle Width, Lot 18, Block 263, West Addition to Edinburg Subdivision,
located at 1021 West Cano Street, as requested by Ricardo Caballero

E. Consider Variances to the City’s Unified Development Code: 1) Section 3.201(C),
Density; 2) Section 3.303, Multifamily Lot and Building Standards, Lot Area; 3)
Section 3.303 Multifamily Lot and Building Standards, Lot Width; 4) Section
10.405, Parking Lot Bufferyards; and 5) Section 9.301, Parking Space Standards,
Driving Aisle Width, Lot 1, Block 265, West Addition to Edinburg Subdivision,
located at 1126 West Cano Street, as requested by Ricardo Caballero

F. Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Section 3.303,
Multifamily Lot and Building Standards, Setbacks, a 0.776 acre tract of land out of
Lot 26, Kelly-Pharr Subdivision, located at 1420 West Wisconsin Road, as requested
by Glenda Garcia on behalf of Moses Ashukem

9. DIRECTOR'S REPORT
 

A. Unified Development Code Update

10. INFORMATION ONLY
 

A. Attendance Roster

11. ADJOURNMENT



I hereby certify that this notice of meeting was posted in accordance with the Open Meetings Act,
V.T.C.A., Government Code, Section 551.041, at the bulletin board located at the main entrance to
the City offices of the City of Edinburg, (415 West University Drive), visible and accessible to the
general public during regular working hours at 4:30 P.M. on Thursday, February 17, 2022.
 

 Alejandra Gonzalez, Administrative Assistant
Planning & Zoning Department

 
MEMBERS WHO ARE UNABLE TO ATTEND ARE ASKED TO NOTIFY THE PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT AT 956-

388-8202
 

NOTICE
 
PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES WHO NEED TO COMMUNICATE MORE EFFECTIVELY WITH CITY OFFICIALS AND WHO
MAY NEED AUXILIARY AIDS OR SERVICES SUCH AS INTERPRETERS FOR PERSONS WHO ARE DEAF OR HEARING
IMPAIRED ARE REQUESTED TO CONTACT THE OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY AT (956) 388-8204 THREE WORKING
DAYS PRIOR TO ANY MEETING SO THAT APPROPRIATE ARRANGEMENTS CAN BE MADE.



NOTICE AND AGENDA 
ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

JANUARY 20, 2022 – 4:00 P.M. 
REGULAR MEETING 

DUSTIN MICHAEL MEMORIAL SEKULA LIBRARY 
MEETING ROOM 

1906 S. CLOSNER BLVD. 
EDINBURG, TEXAS 78539 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT    MEMBERS ABSENT 
Eddie Garza         Alex Rios 
Andre Maldonado        George Cardenas 
Ponciano Longoria 
Diane Teter 
Michael Cantu 
Marc Moran 
 

STAFF 
Kimberly A. Mendoza, Director of Planning & Zoning 
Nikki M. Cavazos, Planner I 
Daniel A. Colina, Planner I 
Tilfred Farley, Planning Assistant 
Jaime Ayala, Planner II 
Omar Ochoa, City Attorney 
Tom Reyna, Assistant City Manager 
Brian Kelsey, Assistant City Manager 
Mardoqueo Hinojosa, City Engineer 
Patrizia Longoria, Engineer III 
Roberto Hernandez, Engineer I 

VISITORS 
Orlando D. Olivarez 
Miguel De Los Santos 
Jose Saenz 
Ericka Vicente Lopez 
Georgina Rodriguez 
Jeff Erickson 
Mario Reyna 
Andrew L. Almaguer 

       
 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER, ESTABLISH QUORUM 
 

The meeting was formally called to order by Vice Chairperson Eddie Garza.  
 

A. Prayer – Announced by Vice Chairperson Eddie Garza. 
 

B. Pledge of Allegiance – Board member Andre Maldonado led the Pledge. The Pledge of 
Allegiance was said by all. 

 
 

2. CERTIFICATION OF PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

Mr. Daniel A. Colina verified the posting of the Zoning Board of Adjustment meeting notice  



ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 20, 2022 
PAGE 2 
 

and it’s Compliance with the Open Meetings Act. Mr. Colina indicated the agenda had been 
posted on Friday, January 17, 2022 during regular working hours, at 10:45 A.M. 

 
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

Public Comments are limited to three (3) minutes. If a resident desires to make a public 
comment, please notify the Chairperson prior to the start of the meeting. A spokesperson for large 
groups is required. We ask for everyone's cooperation in following these procedures. 

  
 No Public Comments. 
 
4. THE FOLLOWING ARE THE MEETING PROCEDURES USED BY THE ZONING 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT: 
 

A. All items are generally considered as they appear on the agenda, as each item is 
introduced: 

 
B. Staff will present its findings and recommendation on the item being considered. 

 
C. The party making the request may make a presentation and may address the Board on 

any issues arising during the discussion of the item being considered. 
 
D. Anyone in the audience desiring to speak in favor or in opposition may do so. A 3 minute 

time limit will be given to each person interested in speaking on the item. The use of a 
spokesperson for large groups of people will be required.  

 
E. Once the Chair closes the public hearing, the Board may question anyone and maintain 

any discussion which clarifies the proposal and will then take what action it believes to 
be appropriate. 

 
F. A minimum of four votes are required for an item to be approved by the Board. 
 

Announced by Vice Chairperson Eddie Garza. 
 

City Attorney Omar Ochoa addressed the Board and stated there is a matter that needs to be 
addressed. There are five permanent members on the Board and four alternate members. 
There needs to be known designation to distinguish between permanent and alternate 
members. If the five permanent members are present, their votes are the only ones registered 
for actions. If any of the permanent members are not present, then the alternate member’s 
vote is registered for actions. Currently there are three permanent members and two 
additional permanent members are needed. At times, the City Council makes the 
designation for permanent and alternate members when the nominations are made, however 
that did not happen in the most recent nomination. The Commission has the opportunity to 
designate who the two additional permanent members will be and the remaining four 
members will be alternates. Everybody still votes, however the permanent ones are the only 
ones registered for the action. 
 
Board member Andre Maldonado moved to nominate Diane Teter for permanent member.  



ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT  
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 20, 2022 
PAGE 3 

 
 Vice Chairperson Eddie Garza seconded the motion. Board member Andre Maldonado 

addressed City Attorney Omar Ochoa and asked whether motion could be rescinded. City 
Attorney Omar Ochoa advised it’s not really a motion. It’s best for there to be a consensus 
on who the designees would be and we could move forward with that understanding. Board 
member Andre Maldonado stated he would then like to nominate all four members as 
permanent members. City Attorney Omar Ochoa advised there is currently three members 
already serving as permanent members and we would need to designate two more members.  

 
City Attorney Omar Ochoa addressed the Board and stated he needed to retract since there 
are currently four permanent members on the Board that are carrying over. We have George 
Cardenas, Alex Rios, Eddie Garza, and Mr. Maldonado, so if the four members carry over, 
only one more designee would be needed. Since we had just agreed on Diane Teter, is that 
still okay with her being designated as a regular member? Board member Andre Maldonado 
stated yes. City Attorney Omar Ochoa stated Board member Diane Teter will be designated 
regular member and the others will be alternate members. For today, there are six Board 
members and one member will be selected as the alternate for the day and the remaining 
five will be active for the remaining of the meeting. Board member Marc Moran offered not 
be an active member for this meeting. City Attorney Omar Ochoa stated for today, the active 
members will be Mr. Longoria, Mr. Eddie Garza, Mr. Maldonado, Ms. Teter, and Mr. 
Cantu.  

 
5. MINUTES 

 
A. Consider approval of the Minutes for the November 17, 2021 Regular Meeting 
 

Board member Andre Maldonado moved to consider approval of the Minutes for the 
November 17, 2021 Regular Meeting. Board member Diane Teter seconded the motion. 
The motion to approve carried unanimously with a vote of 5-0.  
 

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

A. Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Section 3.301, Single 
Family Residential Bulk Standards, Setbacks, Lot 210, Fairhaven Heights Subdivision 
Phase III, located at 1815 Nitsche Drive, as requested by Ericka Vicente Lopez 

 
Austin Colina addressed the Board and stated any applicant receiving approval will need 
to comply with all other requirements during the permitting process. If approved, a $40 
fee payable to the Hidalgo County Clerk’s Office for the recording of the Zoning Board 
of Adjustments Order is required.  
 
Daniel A. Colina presented the item to the Board.  
 
Vice Chairperson inquired whether Ericka Vicente Lopez was present.  
 
Applicant Ericka Vicente Lopez addressed the Board. She advised she requested a 
permit November 23 to make a carport in front of her house. She advised she has a 19 
year old son with Autism and he likes to go outside to paint. Before, there was a tree but 
it dried out leaving no shade. Also, so when it rains and they are arriving in their car  



ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT  
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 20, 2022 
PAGE 4 

they will be protected. She stated he likes to be outside and when it rains or there’s sun, 
he can be protected. That is the motive for requesting the permit. She mentioned they 
will hire someone to get it done professionally with good material.  
 
There were no other public comments.  
 
Daniel A. Colina addressed the Board before a vote was taken and reiterated any more 
than 20 ft. into the setback will be into a Utility Easement of record and will require a 
different variance, so the approval should be limited up to a 20 ft. encroachment to the 
Utility Easement line, which is as requested.  
 
Vice Chairperson Eddie Garza questioned whether a 20 x 20 would not encroach.  
 
Daniel A. Colina clarified that it would not encroach into the Utility Easement.  
 
Board member Ponciano Longoria inquired about the width of the driveway. 
 
Daniel A. Colina advised he believes it’s 18 ft.  
 
Board member Michael Cantu moved to approve with the condition that encroachment 
does not exceed 20 ft. Board member Andre Maldonado seconded the motion. The 
motion to approve carried with a vote of 4-1. Board member Ponciano Longoria voted 
to disapprove.  

 
B. Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Section 3.303, Multi-

Family Lot and Building Standards, Setbacks, being 19.641 acres out of Lots 7 and 8, 
Texas-Mexican Railway Company’s Survey, Lots 1-51 of proposed Sugar Mill Estates 
Subdivision, located at 1700 North Sugar Road, as requested by Novellini, LTD.    
 
Austin Colina presented the item to the Board. 

 
There was Public Comments. Irma Rios addressed the Board and stated her property is 
adjacent to the property that is requesting the variance. She expressed concerns due to 
trash, speeding, drainage, and traffic. If the setbacks are reduced there could be more 
problems regarding drainage. Concerned with variances being approved.  
 
Andrew Almaguer addressed the Board, he is one of the property owners on the West 
side. Very concerned with what is being requested. The Board heard the concerns the 
City staff mentioned and the property is surrounded by Multi-Family homes. He stated 
there’s so much traffic in the area and they have to wait just to get out. The safety 
concern is high. It would be at the benefit of the developer, but at the expense of the 
community. It would certainly be a mistake. Take the community into consideration and 
not just look at the interest of the developers.  
 
Mario Reyna from Melden & Hunt, project engineer, addressed the board on behalf of 
the applicant. He stated he would like to address the concerns one by one. The UDC is 
currently being updated, it is outdated. He advised that it doesn’t jive with what is 
currently going on in the City. Mr. Reyna elaborated that all of the variances that Austin 
mentioned are items they call repeat offenders. He stated that they’ve gotten them with  



ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 20, 2022 
PAGE 5 

every single subdivision they’ve done here. He stated he doesn’t think it was a mistake 
in the past and that it’s understood that this is what is needed to continue development. 
Mr. Reyna stated, the City requires that we have trash enclosures, don’t foresee there 
being trash issues. The actual mobility has been approved by Engineering and Fire 
Department. There will be 5 ft. sidewalks fronting every lot, we have complied with 
every drainage requirements with the City and County. Mr. Reyna elaborated, we will 
maintain our drainage system ourselves. This is a private community. Mr. Reyna also 
discussed access points that shouldn’t affect traffic. The City has a project going on 
Sugar Road. Mr. Reyna noted that none of the setbacks affect City operations and they 
are still in compliance with Fire and Code. He advised he is happy to answer any 
questions. 
 
Board member Michael Cantu asked which are some of the developments that were 
approved with these variances.  
 
Mario Reyna advised every one of the ones they have worked on, the most recent being 
Union Square, which is one block away. He added Canton Ridge, Monmack Landing, 
Sprague Village, Monmack Place, and on Russell and Closner, Alfonso Quintanilla did 
about four on that block. He advised that every single variance they have done here have 
been approved.  
 
Board member Michael Cantu inquired whether there have been any issues with those 
Projects. 
 
Mario Reyna stated, not to my knowledge.  
 
Vice Chairperson Eddie Garza advised it is important to make sure the Fire Department 
side of the City has approved what they’re looking to do.  
 
Mario Reyna stated one hundred percent. They are currently working on a project in 
Hoehn and Schunior and they actually recommended approval to some of the variance 
that the gentleman mentioned. There was brief discussion regarding the pavement 
requirements.  
 
Board member Michael Cantu inquired whether there was a site plan of the proposed 
layout.  
 
Mario Reyna advised they were asked to submit a site plan early on in the subdivision 
game and it does comply. Mr. Reyna elaborated that even if the variances were granted 
they would still need to comply with permitting requirements. 
 
There was brief discussion regarding encroaching into easements and variances that 
have gone to City Council.  
 
Austin Colina advised Mr. Reyna is correct in the City updating the Unified 
Development Code. The types of variances that are being considered today may be 
changed in the next couple of months. After brief discussion regarding possible updates 
to the Unified Development Code, he clarified that Mr. Reyna was mistaken and the 
Code was adopted in August 6, 2007. There are elements that are certainly outdated.  



ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 20, 2022 
PAGE 6 

Board member Diane Teter moved to disapprove the item. Board member Andre 
Maldonado seconded the motion. Board members Ponciano Longoria, Eddie Garza, and 
Michael Cantu voted to approve the item. Vice Chairperson Eddie Garza stated they had 
two disapprovals and four approvals and it is enough to pass the item, so item passes.  
 
City Attorney Omar Ochoa advised staff is a bit confused and clarified the members 
who voted yes to raise their hands.  
 
Motion did not carry. 

 
Board member Andre Maldonado excused himself from the meeting. 

 
C.  Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Section 3.303, Multi-

Family Lot and Building Standards, Setbacks, being 31.124 acres out of Lot 14, Section 
237, Texas-Mexican Railway Company’s Survey, Lots 1-89 of proposed Woodlands 
Estates Subdivision, located at 1001 North McColl Road, as requested by Escanaba, 
LLC.  
 
Austin Colina presented the item to the Board. 
 
Jeffrey Erickson, owner of Escanaba, LLC. addressed the Board. He stated all of the 
subdivisions he’s built have been 5 ft. setback and 10 ft front setback. Built over a 1,000 
properties here and it’s something we’ve done before. It is a gated community and will 
have a uniformed look. We will not be encroaching into the utility easements.  
 
Vice Chairperson Eddie Garza inquired whether we have gotten 100% approval from 
our Fire Department. Mr. Erickson confirmed they have.  
 
Board member Ponciano Longoria inquired whether the setbacks would interfere with 
any easements. 
 
Mario Reyna, project engineer, addressed the Board and advised of a 10 ft. utility 
easement and a 5 ft. electrical easement. 
 
Board member Diane Teter inquired whether the variances would increase the density 
in the subdivision. Mario Reyna advised the particular variances wouldn’t, however 
potentially.  
 
Jose Saenz addressed the Board and advised staff is making recommendations to 
disapprove and the Board is ignoring their recommendations. Mr. Saenz stated, I 
understand what the developers are trying to do but the developer’s come in and do what 
they’re going to do, and then they leave. Trash, fencing to the South, is all broken, we 
are needing to do repairs ourselves. How are they going to ensure, aside from the City, 
that everything is well maintained? That is the biggest concern as a property owner in 
the area.  
 
 
 
 



ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 20, 2022 
PAGE 7  
 

Jeffrey Erickson, owner of Escanaba, LLC. Addressed the Board. He stated that one of 
the main concerns as far as who is going to maintain the properties, it is a gated 
community and there will be a Home Owner’s Association associated with it. There are 
$600 per lot for maintenance or anything that comes up with the subdivision. Fence will 
be concrete and wood.  
 
City Attorney Omar Ochoa stated that since Andre Maldonado left all the remaining 
members are regular members and their vote counts.  
 
Board member Michael Cantu moved to approve the item. Board member Marc Moran 
seconded the motion. Motion carried with a vote of 4-1. Board member Diane Teter 
disapproved.  

 
D. Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Section 2.301 (D) (9), 

Fences Facing or Abutting a Golf Course, being Lot 92, Lumen Subdivision Phase B, 
located at 3501 Lago Washington Road, as requested by Miguel De Los Santos 

 
Austin Colina presented the item to the Board. 
 
Miguel De Los Santos addressed the Board. Everyone else has a fence. Every similar 
variance that has come through the commission has been approved.  
 
Vice Chairperson Eddie Garza inquired whether there is any pictures of the proposed 
fence.  

 
After brief discussion regarding the Ordinance for Fences Facing or Abutting the golf 
course, Board member Ponciano Logoria moved to approve the item. Board member 
Michael Cantu seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously with a vote of 5-0.  

   
E. Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Section 3.301, Single 

Family Residential Bulk Standards, Setbacks, being 0.42 acres of Lot 16, Block 233, 
Texas-Mexican Railway Company’s Survey, located at 1023 North Hoehn Road, as 
requested by Orlando D. Olivarez 

 
Austin Colina presented the item to the Board. 
 
Orlando D. Olivarez addressed the Board. He advised initially the Planner hadn’t 
realized there was an easement. They tried to centralize construction as much as 
possible, however it was denied by the City, hence why they are asking for the Variance.  
 
Board member Diane Teter moved to approve the item. Board member Ponciano 
Longoria seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously with a vote of 5-0. 
 

7. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 

A. Unified Development Code Update 
 
Mrs. Kimberly Mendoza discussed we started the update of the Unified Development Code  



ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 20, 2022 
PAGE 8 
 

early last year. The code was first adopted in 2007. Kendig Keast Collaborative drafted the code 
and are currently working on the update. A lot of variance requests that are being seen are being  
addressed as part of the update. We’re hoping with the update it will streamline the process. We 
had a UDC meeting on January 11, 2022. We will be regrouping within the next couple of 
weeks.  

 
8. INFORMATION ONLY 

 
A.  Attendance Roster 

 
9. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Board member Ponciano Longoria moved to adjourn the meeting. Board member Diane Teter 
seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously with a vote of 5-0.  

 
 
 

        Alejandra Gonzalez 
       Alejandra Gonzalez, Administrative Assistant 

 



  

Variance Request 

 

RINGO TREVIÑO  Page 1 

Planning & Zoning Staff Report Prepared on:  February 11, 2022 

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT Regular Meeting:  February 23, 2022 

Agenda Item 8A 

Consider Variances to the City’s Unified Development Code: 1) Section 3.301, Single Family 

Residential Bulk Standards, Setbacks, and 2) Section 3.505, Easements and Utilities, Lot 24, Block 

2, Olivia Estates Subdivision Section 2, located at 3719 Ora Street, as requested by Ringo G. 

Treviño 

 

Request 

The applicant is requesting two variances to the City’s Unified Development Code (UDC), Section 

3.301, as it applies to setbacks and Section 3.505 as it applies to utility easements. The applicant 

has started construction of an accessory structure into both the side yard setback and a utility 

easement located along the rear of the lot. 

Property Location and Vicinity 

The property is located on the north side of Ora Street, approximately 450 ft. west of South Mon 

Mack Road, and is zoned Neighborhood Conservation 7.1 (NC7.1) District. Adjacent zoning is 

Neighborhood Conservation 7.1 (NC7.1) District in all directions.  

Background and History 

The property is part of the Olivia Estates Subdivision Section 2, which was recorded on February 

19, 2004. The applicant applied for a building permit for an accessory structure on October 13, 

2021. The site plan for the proposed structure showed encroachments into the side yard setback 

and rear utility easement. This building permit application was disapproved by the Planning 

Department.  

On November 18, 2021 the applicant resubmitted the application for a building permit for the 

same accessory structure. The revised application was accompanied by a site plan showing 

compliance with all setbacks and utility easements.  This permit was approved and issued. 

On January 7, 2022, the Planning Department was notified by City building inspectors that the 

accessory structure was not being built as permitted. Field inspections verified that the frame of 

the accessory structure was being constructed approximately 5.6 ft. into the side yard setback 

and approximately 6.2 ft. into the 10 foot rear utility easement. Subsequently, the Building 

Inspection Division posted a stop work order. The applicant then applied for variance to continue 

with the construction. 

Staff mailed notice of this variance request to 48 neighboring property owners. No comments in 

favor and one against this request had been received at the time this report was prepared. 



Planning & Zoning Staff Report 

RINGO TREVIÑO   Page 2 

Analysis 

The property has 70 ft. of width along Ora Street and 125 ft. of depth for a total lot area of 8,750 

sq. ft. UDC Section 3.301 requires a minimum side yard setback of 7 ft. for single-family lots in 

the Neighborhood Conservation 7.1 (NC7.1) District. The subdivision plat for the Olivia Estates 

Subdivision Section 2 shows a 10 ft. utility easement at the rear (north end) of the subject 

property. Inspections of the property indicated that construction is taking place approximately 

5.6 feet into the required side yard setback, an encroachment covering approximately 80% of the 

required setback. The structure is also approximately 6.2 ft. into a 10 ft. utility easement, an 

encroachment covering approximately 61.3% of the required utility easement. The applicant 

stated that the accessory structure is for leisure and hobbies. 

Recommendation 

Staff recommends disapproval of the variances requested. The accessory structure could be built 

as specified in the approved building permit while respecting all setbacks and utility easements. 

No hardship or extraordinary conditions exist to justify approval of this variance as is required by 

UDC Section 14.404(D). 

If approved, the applicant will need to comply with all other requirements during the permitting 

process. If approved, $40 fee, payable to the County of Hidalgo, County Clerk’s Office, for the 

recording of the ZBA order is also required. A location map, aerial map, photo, subdivision plat, 

site plan, and application from the property owner are attached for the Board’s consideration. 

 

Prepared by: Approved by: 

Tilfred R. Farley Kimberly A. Mendoza, MPA  

Planner I Director of Planning & Zoning  

 



M
ID

LA
N

D
S 

C
IR

W  F R E D D Y  G O N Z A L E Z  D R

W  L A  G U A R D I A  L N

W  S P R A G U E  S T

M I D L A N D S  C I R

P R I N C E S S  S T

S 
M

O
N

 M
A

C
K

 R
D

SA
K

ER
 S

T

E M
P R

E S
S  

S T

RE
YN

O
LD

S
AV

E

S E
G

U
L A

AV
E

M O N S E R A T
D R

PA L A C E
S T

SA
K

ER
 S

T

SE
G

U
LA

AV
E

RE
YN

O
LD

S
AV

E

M
A

LT
E S

E  
S T

O R A  S T

IM
A 

ST

O M E G A  S T

Z O E  A V E Z O E  A V E

BI
SH

O
P

ST

E S
T H

E R
 A

V E

DF
W

 D
R

L O
G

A
N

 D
R

I N E Z  S T

W
EL

LI
NG

TO
N  

A V
EW H I T E W I N G  A V E

H A W T H O R N E  A V E

I D A  S T

B L A C K H A W K  S T

L U L A  S T

G Y R  S T

I N E Z  S T

L U L A  S T

W  D U T C H E S S  S T

K N I G H T  A V E

L A N C E L O T  L N

®
1 in = 500 ft

AERIAL MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
RINGO TREVINO

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE
CITY LIMITS



E.C
.I.S

.D.
 SU

BD
. N

o 1
2

0001-10

T2100-00-278-0002-

-04

-08 -07 -05-01-01

-18-16
-14

-03

-00

Texas -Me xican  Railwa y Com pan y Sur vey
acre  tra ct o ut o f Lo t 2,  Sectio n 27 8,

Elvin  Gala rza

C.O.C NO . 08 -0 5-0 1

2.0 acre  be ing a  pr otio n of  a ce rta in 3 .0
421 0 West  Spra gue  Stre et

BR
OW

NW
OO

D 
SU

BD
45

.00
'

20

12

9

25
.25

'

25
.25

'

28
.42

'

28
.42

'

25
.0'

25
.0'

28
.42

'

28
.42

'

25
.0'

25
.0'

28
.42

'

28
.42

'

25
.0'

25
.0'

28
.42

'

28
.42

'

25
.0'

25
.0'

28
.42

'

28
.42

'

25
.0'

25
.0'

28
.42

'

28
.42

'

25
.0'

25
.0'

85.1'

94
.0'

84.9'

90.0'19
1817
16
1514
13
11
10
8
7
65
43
2

28
.42

'

28
.42

'

25
.0'

25
.0'

28
.42

'

28
.42

'

25
.0'

25
.0'

28
.42

'

28
.42

'

90.0'125
.0'

T2100-00-278-0001-

-07

-24

-22

-30

-18
-17

-16
-15
-14

-13

-12
-11

-09

-08

-05

44

313029282726252423222120
19
18
17

PH. 1

PH. 2

24
23

22
21

20 19 18 17 16 15 14 13
121110987654321

98
.00

'

88
.00

98
.00

'

98
.00

'

86
.70

'

78.33'52.00' 52.00'52.00'52.00'52.00'

78.33'52.00' 52.00'52.00'52.00'52.00'

98
.00

'

49.83'

PLAZA

MIDLANDS

LOT 1

SECTION 1

THE BOARDWALK52.00'52.00'52.00'52.00'62.98'

140.00'

52
.00

'
52

.00
'

52
.00

'

52
.00

'
52

.00
'

52
.00

'

52.00'52.00'52.00'52.00'52.98'

52.00'52.00'52.00'52.00'

72
.00

'

72
.00

'

140.00'

52.00'

52.98'

BLK 1

BLK 2

T2100-00-278-0010-

-05-07-26 -02-11-03

HIGHLAND RIDGE SUBD.

DO
UB

LE
 "O

" 

SU
BD

.

21

1

FREDDY GONZALEZ

VALLE VERDE MANOR
46 45 44 43 42 41 40 39 38 37 36 35 34 33 32 31 30 29

28

27

262423

WEST MEADOWS SUBD.

151412 13

9

10
11

59

52

606162

5149 50

39

44464748

35 36 37 38

45

7

8

5

6

3

4

1

2

13 14 158 9 10 114 5 6 7 121 2 3

3031323334

2

RO
SS

ER
SU

BD
IV

IS
IO

N

NEWCASTLE
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

26
27
28
29
30

11 12 13 14 15
10

9

8
7
6
5
4
3
2

24
23

25

31
321

SECTION 4
27

28

30
29

3231 33

15 16

38

22

37

20 21

34 35

17 18 19

36 43
44

27
28

41 42

25 26

4039

2423

SUBD.

SPRAGUE LANDING

54

53

52

51

50

49

48 47

46
45

44

43

42
41 40

39

38

37

36
35

34 33

32

31

30

29
28

27 26

25

24

23

22

21

20

191817161514131211108

7
6

5

4

3

2

1

T2100-00-275-0012-

T2100-00-275-0011-

T2100-00-275-0003-

T2
10

0-0
0-2

76
-00

13
-

-01   -02

-00

-10

-07
-03
-04

-05

-00

-07

-02

1234567891011121314
26

25

23

24

22

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 30

2928272625242322212019181716

15 14 13 12 11 10 9 8 7 6 5 4 3 2

21

1

29

SECTION 3

SECTION 2
MO

NM
AC

K R
OA

D

THE MIDLANDS

21 20 19 18 17 16 15 14 13
12

4622

47

29

30 31 32 4

23
24
25
26
27

28

45 44 43 42

41
4048
3949

3837363534

33 1 2 3

11
10

9
8
7

6

5

15

6

14 13 12 111617181920

7 8 9 1054321

BLOCK II

BLOCK I

2

1

J.C
.J.M

. SUBD.

WEST MEADOWS

41

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

CHEYENNE RANCH

123

4
5 6

10987654321

FALCON'S LA
NDING

8584

70

71 72

1

86

87

88

89

90

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

8382818079787776757473

2

3

4

6

7

8

65

66

67

68

69

5

126 125 124 123 122 121 120 119 118 117 116 115

103 104 105 106 107 108 109 110 111 112 113 114

102 101 100 99 98 97 96 95 94 93 92 91

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

64 63 62 61 60 59 58 57 56 55 54 53

41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52

40 39 38 37 36 35 34 33 32 31 30 29

21

20

222324252627282930313233343536373839

19181716151413121110987654321

SPANISH OAKS

14 9 8

7

6

5

13

1

12

2

11

3

10

4

7576777879808182838485868788

1021011009998979695949392919089

74

73

72

71

70

69

68

67

106 105 104 103113 112 111 110 109 108 107117 116 115 114

129 130 131 132122 123 124 125 126 127 128118 119 120 121

BLOCK 2

BLOCK 1

123456789101112131415

12345678910111213141516
17

18

19

20

OLIV
IA ESTATES

66

65

64

63

62

61

56 57 58 59 60

51 52 53 54 55

40 41 42 4333 34 35 36 37 38 39

44 45 46 47 48 49 50

VICTORIA HEIGHTS

29

21

12

1

30

22

31

23

32

24 25 26 27 28

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

11
12

5

13

1

8

9

16

2 3 4 5

5

4

ENGELMAN'S
SUBDIVISION

2

7

10

15

15

1

BRANDY ESTATES

1

AL
CA

NI
Z

SU
BD

IV
IS

IO
N

2

3

4

5

7

8

9

10

14

30

29

28

31

32

33

50

49

48

51

52

70

69

71

72

11

12

13

90

89
92

91

MON MACK LA
NDING

SUBDIVISION

22

23

97
.33

'

63.00' 51.04'

124.49'

74
.00

'
74

.00
'

74
.00

'
74

.00
'

53
.00

'

15
4.2

8'
74

.00
'

74
.00

'
74

.00
'

74
.00

'
15

4.3
9'

74.00'156.09' 74.00' 74.00' 155.91'

125.09'

115.00'

74
.00

'
74

.00
'

35.44' 35.
27' 193.58'

78
.00

'
74

.00
'

74
.00

'
74

.00
'

74
.00

'
40

.33
'

15
4.6

7'

74.00'13.98' 13.97'

53.00' 74.00'

154.80'

10
0.0

0'
10

0.0
0'

10
0.0

0'
10

0.0
0'

1

2

3

4
5

6

7
8 9 10 12

13

14

15

16

17

18
192021

11

35
.67

'

180
.90

'

181.73'11
3.0

9' 13
7.3

3'

13
7.3

3'

11
3.1

3'

115.65'

140.00'

140.00'

140.00'

115.63'

181.21'

12
1.1

5'

13
7.3

3'

115.55'

140.00'

140.00'

140.00'

140.00'

140.00'

52
.50

'
30

.00
'

30
.00

'3
0.

00
'

52
.50

'

SPRAGUE

GARDENS

MON MACK
VILLAGE SUBD.LOT 1

150149148147146145144143 151

156157158159160161162163 155 153154 152

190 191189188186 187184 185182 183180 181178 179177176175174173172

170171 169 168 167 166 165 164

136135 137 138 139 140 141 142

134 133 132 131 130 129 128 127 126 125 124 123 122 121 120 119 118 117 116

SPRAGUE VILLAGE

SUBDIVISION

M
ID

LA
N

D
S 

C
IR

W  F R E D D Y  G O N Z A L E Z  D R

W  L A  G U A R D I A  L N

W  S P R A G U E  S T

M I D L A N D S  C I R

P R I N C E S S  S T

S 
M

O
N

 M
A

C
K

 R
D

SA
K

ER
 S

T

E M
P R

E S
S  

S T

RE
YN

O
LD

S
AV

E

S E
G

U
L A

AV
E

M O N S E R A T
D R

PA L A C E
S T

SA
K

ER
 S

T

SE
G

U
LA

AV
E

RE
YN

O
LD

S
AV

E

M
A

LT
E S

E  
S T

O R A  S T

IM
A 

ST

O M E G A  S T

Z O E  A V E Z O E  A V E

BI
SH

O
P

ST

E S
T H

E R
 A

V E

DF
W

 D
R

L O
G

A
N

 D
R

I N E Z  S T

W
EL

LI
NG

TO
N  

A V
EW H I T E W I N G  A V E

H A W T H O R N E  A V E

I D A  S T

B L A C K H A W K  S T

L U L A  S T

G Y R  S T

I N E Z  S T

L U L A  S T

W  D U T C H E S S  S T

K N I G H T  A V E

L A N C E L O T  L N

®
1 in = 500 ft

ZONING MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
RINGO TREVINO

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

ZONING DISTRICTS
AGRICULTURE
AUTO-URBAN RESIDENTIAL
COMMERCIAL, GENERAL
COMMERCIAL, NEIGHBORHOOD
DOWNTOWN DISTRICT
INDUSTRIAL
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 5
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 7.1
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION MH
SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL
URBAN RESIDENTIAL
URBAN UNIVERSITY
CITY LIMITS



E.C
.I.S

.D.
 SU

BD
. N

o 1
2

0001-10

T2100-00-278-0002-

-04

-08 -07 -05-01-01

-18-16
-14

-03

-00

Texas -Me xican  Railwa y Com pan y Sur vey
acre  tra ct o ut o f Lo t 2,  Sectio n 27 8,

Elvin  Gala rza

C.O.C NO . 08 -0 5-0 1

2.0 acre  be ing a  pr otio n of  a ce rta in 3 .0
421 0 West  Spra gue  Stre et

BR
OW

NW
OO

D 
SU

BD
45

.00
'

20

12

9

25
.25

'

25
.25

'

28
.42

'

28
.42

'

25
.0'

25
.0'

28
.42

'

28
.42

'

25
.0'

25
.0'

28
.42

'

28
.42

'

25
.0'

25
.0'

28
.42

'

28
.42

'

25
.0'

25
.0'

28
.42

'

28
.42

'

25
.0'

25
.0'

28
.42

'

28
.42

'

25
.0'

25
.0'

85.1'

94
.0'

84.9'

90.0'19
1817
16
1514
13
11
10
8
7
65
43
2

28
.42

'

28
.42

'

25
.0'

25
.0'

28
.42

'

28
.42

'

25
.0'

25
.0'

28
.42

'

28
.42

'

90.0'125
.0'

T2100-00-278-0001-

-07

-24

-22

-30

-18
-17

-16
-15
-14

-13

-12
-11

-09

-08

-05

44

313029282726252423222120
19
18
17

PH. 1

PH. 2

24
23

22
21

20 19 18 17 16 15 14 13
121110987654321

98
.00

'

88
.00

98
.00

'

98
.00

'

86
.70

'

78.33'52.00' 52.00'52.00'52.00'52.00'

78.33'52.00' 52.00'52.00'52.00'52.00'

98
.00

'

49.83'

PLAZA

MIDLANDS

LOT 1

SECTION 1

THE BOARDWALK52.00'52.00'52.00'52.00'62.98'

140.00'

52
.00

'
52

.00
'

52
.00

'

52
.00

'
52

.00
'

52
.00

'

52.00'52.00'52.00'52.00'52.98'

52.00'52.00'52.00'52.00'

72
.00

'

72
.00

'

140.00'

52.00'

52.98'

BLK 1

BLK 2

T2100-00-278-0010-

-05-07-26 -02-11-03

HIGHLAND RIDGE SUBD.

DO
UB

LE
 "O

" 

SU
BD

.

21

1

FREDDY GONZALEZ

VALLE VERDE MANOR
46 45 44 43 42 41 40 39 38 37 36 35 34 33 32 31 30 29

28

27

262423

WEST MEADOWS SUBD.

151412 13

9

10
11

59

52

606162

5149 50

39

44464748

35 36 37 38

45

7

8

5

6

3

4

1

2

13 14 158 9 10 114 5 6 7 121 2 3

3031323334

2

RO
SS

ER
SU

BD
IV

IS
IO

N

NEWCASTLE
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

26
27
28
29
30

11 12 13 14 15
10

9

8
7
6
5
4
3
2

24
23

25

31
321

SECTION 4
27

28

30
29

3231 33

15 16

38

22

37

20 21

34 35

17 18 19

36 43
44

27
28

41 42

25 26

4039

2423

SUBD.

SPRAGUE LANDING

54

53

52

51

50

49

48 47

46
45

44

43

42
41 40

39

38

37

36
35

34 33

32

31

30

29
28

27 26

25

24

23

22

21

20

191817161514131211108

7
6

5

4

3

2

1

T2100-00-275-0012-

T2100-00-275-0011-

T2100-00-275-0003-

T2
10

0-0
0-2

76
-00

13
-

-01   -02

-00

-10

-07
-03
-04

-05

-00

-07

-02

1234567891011121314
26

25

23

24

22

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 30

2928272625242322212019181716

15 14 13 12 11 10 9 8 7 6 5 4 3 2

21

1

29

SECTION 3

SECTION 2
MO

NM
AC

K R
OA

D

THE MIDLANDS

21 20 19 18 17 16 15 14 13
12

4622

47

29

30 31 32 4

23
24
25
26
27

28

45 44 43 42

41
4048
3949

3837363534

33 1 2 3

11
10

9
8
7

6

5

15

6

14 13 12 111617181920

7 8 9 1054321

BLOCK II

BLOCK I

2

1

J.C
.J.M

. SUBD.

WEST MEADOWS

41

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

CHEYENNE RANCH

123

4
5 6

10987654321

FALCON'S LA
NDING

8584

70

71 72

1

86

87

88

89

90

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

8382818079787776757473

2

3

4

6

7

8

65

66

67

68

69

5

126 125 124 123 122 121 120 119 118 117 116 115

103 104 105 106 107 108 109 110 111 112 113 114

102 101 100 99 98 97 96 95 94 93 92 91

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

64 63 62 61 60 59 58 57 56 55 54 53

41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52

40 39 38 37 36 35 34 33 32 31 30 29

21

20

222324252627282930313233343536373839

19181716151413121110987654321

SPANISH OAKS

14 9 8

7

6

5

13

1

12

2

11

3

10

4

7576777879808182838485868788

1021011009998979695949392919089

74

73

72

71

70

69

68

67

106 105 104 103113 112 111 110 109 108 107117 116 115 114

129 130 131 132122 123 124 125 126 127 128118 119 120 121

BLOCK 2

BLOCK 1

123456789101112131415

12345678910111213141516
17

18

19

20

OLIV
IA ESTATES

66

65

64

63

62

61

56 57 58 59 60

51 52 53 54 55

40 41 42 4333 34 35 36 37 38 39

44 45 46 47 48 49 50

VICTORIA HEIGHTS

29

21

12

1

30

22

31

23

32

24 25 26 27 28

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

11
12

5

13

1

8

9

16

2 3 4 5

5

4

ENGELMAN'S
SUBDIVISION

2

7

10

15

15

1

BRANDY ESTATES

1

AL
CA

NI
Z

SU
BD

IV
IS

IO
N

2

3

4

5

7

8

9

10

14

30

29

28

31

32

33

50

49

48

51

52

70

69

71

72

11

12

13

90

89
92

91

MON MACK LA
NDING

SUBDIVISION

22

23

97
.33

'

63.00' 51.04'

124.49'

74
.00

'
74

.00
'

74
.00

'
74

.00
'

53
.00

'

15
4.2

8'
74

.00
'

74
.00

'
74

.00
'

74
.00

'
15

4.3
9'

74.00'156.09' 74.00' 74.00' 155.91'

125.09'

115.00'

74
.00

'
74

.00
'

35.44' 35.
27' 193.58'

78
.00

'
74

.00
'

74
.00

'
74

.00
'

74
.00

'
40

.33
'

15
4.6

7'

74.00'13.98' 13.97'

53.00' 74.00'

154.80'

10
0.0

0'
10

0.0
0'

10
0.0

0'
10

0.0
0'

1

2

3

4
5

6

7
8 9 10 12

13

14

15

16

17

18
192021

11

35
.67

'

180
.90

'

181.73'11
3.0

9' 13
7.3

3'

13
7.3

3'

11
3.1

3'

115.65'

140.00'

140.00'

140.00'

115.63'

181.21'

12
1.1

5'

13
7.3

3'

115.55'

140.00'

140.00'

140.00'

140.00'

140.00'

52
.50

'
30

.00
'

30
.00

'3
0.

00
'

52
.50

'

SPRAGUE

GARDENS

MON MACK
VILLAGE SUBD.LOT 1

150149148147146145144143 151

156157158159160161162163 155 153154 152

190 191189188186 187184 185182 183180 181178 179177176175174173172

170171 169 168 167 166 165 164

136135 137 138 139 140 141 142

134 133 132 131 130 129 128 127 126 125 124 123 122 121 120 119 118 117 116

SPRAGUE VILLAGE

SUBDIVISION

M
ID

LA
N

D
S 

C
IR

W  F R E D D Y  G O N Z A L E Z  D R

W  L A  G U A R D I A  L N

W  S P R A G U E  S T

M I D L A N D S  C I R

P R I N C E S S  S T

S 
M

O
N

 M
A

C
K

 R
D

SA
K

ER
 S

T

E M
P R

E S
S  

S T

RE
YN

O
LD

S
AV

E

S E
G

U
L A

AV
E

M O N S E R A T
D R

PA L A C E
S T

SA
K

ER
 S

T

SE
G

U
LA

AV
E

RE
YN

O
LD

S
AV

E

M
A

LT
E S

E  
S T

O R A  S T

IM
A 

ST

O M E G A  S T

Z O E  A V E Z O E  A V E

BI
SH

O
P

ST

E S
T H

E R
 A

V E

DF
W

 D
R

L O
G

A
N

 D
R

I N E Z  S T

W
EL

LI
NG

TO
N  

A V
EW H I T E W I N G  A V E

H A W T H O R N E  A V E

I D A  S T

B L A C K H A W K  S T

L U L A  S T

G Y R  S T

I N E Z  S T

L U L A  S T

W  D U T C H E S S  S T

K N I G H T  A V E

L A N C E L O T  L N

®
1 in = 500 ft

MAILOUT AND SITE MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
RINGO TREVINO

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE
300FT NOTIFICATION
CITY LIMITS









Zoning Board of Adjustment 
Site Photos for meeting of February 23, 2022 

RINGO TREVIÑO 





  

Variance Request 

 

ADRIAN GUZMAN  Page 1 

Planning & Zoning Staff Report Prepared on: February 8, 2022 

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT Regular Meeting:  February 23, 2022 

Agenda Item 8B 

Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Section 2.301(D)(9), Fences Facing or 

Abutting a Golf Course, Lot 4, Los Lagos Phase III Subdivision, located at 3321 Macquarie Drive, 

as requested by Adrian Guzman 
 

Request 

The applicant is requesting a variance to the City’s Unified Development Code (UDC), Section 

2.301(D)(9), to construct a fence along the rear property line of a residential lot abutting a golf 

course. Fences along a golf course are prohibited by the aforementioned section of the UDC. 

Property Location and Vicinity 

The property is located on the north side of Macquarie Drive, just north of the intersection of 

Macquarie Drive and Los Lagos Drive, and is zoned Neighborhood Conservation 7.1 (NC7.1) 

District. Adjacent zoning is Neighborhood Conservation 7.1 (NC7.1) District to the east, west and 

south, and Suburban Residential (S) District to the north where the golf course is located.  

Background and History 

The property is part of the Los Lagos Phase III Subdivision, which was recorded on August 22, 

2003. The applicant is proposing to construct a 4 ft. high fence approximately 70 ft. along the 

rear property line. The applicant submitted a Residential Building Permit Application for a fence 

on January 7, 2022. Review of the plans showed the subject property along the perimeter of the 

Los Lagos Golf Course. After discussion with staff, the applicant submitted a Variance Request on 

January 11, 2022, to accommodate the project. 

Staff mailed notice of this variance request to 29 neighboring property owners. No comments in 

favor or against this request had been received at the time this report was prepared. 

Analysis 

The property has 70 ft. of frontage on Macquarie Drive and a depth of approximately 138 ft. for 

a total lot area of 9,641.95 sq. ft. Staff review of a Residential Building Permit Application for a 

fence, submitted by the applicant on January 7, 2022, identified the property as abutting the Los 

Lagos Golf Course. UDC Section 2.301(D)(9) prohibits any fence facing or abutting a golf course. 

Variance is required for the applicant to proceed with the project. 

The applicant indicated that the proposed fence would be 4 ft. high and of a wrought iron type. 

The fence would extend along the rear property line, approximately 70 ft., bordering a portion 

of the Los Lagos Golf Course. The stated need for the fence is to protect his property and for 

security and safety reasons pertaining to his children. 



Planning & Zoning Staff Report 

ADRIAN GUZMAN   Page 2 

 

Recommendation 

Staff recommends compliance with the ordinance requirement that states no fence shall be 

constructed on any lot adjoining a golf course.   Similar variances have been granted in the Los 

Lagos development. Most recent approval was granted at the meeting of January 20, 2022, for a 

property located in the nearby Lumen Phase B Subdivision.  This Ordinance is being reviewed as 

part of the UDC update. 

If approved, the applicant will need to comply with all other requirements during the permitting 

process. If approved, $40 fee, payable to the County of Hidalgo, County Clerk’s Office, for the 

recording of the ZBA order is also required. A location map, aerial map, photo, subdivision plat, 

site plan, and application from the property owner are attached for the Board’s consideration. 

Prepared by: Approved by: 

D. Austin Colina Kimberly A. Mendoza, MPA  

Planner I Director of Planning & Zoning  

 



W O O D S
D R  S

LI
N K

S  
D

R

L A G O  T A H O E

LA G O
E R I E

L U D D E N
D R

S T R E E T
O

LA G O
H U R O N

L O S  L A G O S  D R

V I E W  P O I N T  D R

ST
R

EE
T

L

P R O V I D E N C E  D
R

W
O O D S

D R  E

L A
G

O
 H

U R
O

N

L A G O  S U P E R I O R

ST
R

EE
T  

N

L A G O  W A S H I N G T O N

L A G O

H U R O N

M A C Q U A R I E  D R

S 
D

O
O

LI
TT

L E
 R

D

S E T O N  S
T

L A G O  D
E L T O N

L O S  L A G O S  D R

A R L I N A  D R

®
1 in = 400 ft

AERIAL MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
ADRIAN GUZMAN

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE
CITY LIMITS



-01

15

LOS LAGOS

PH. 3
PH. 1

13
12

11
10
9
8
7
6
5
4

98

86

89
88

87

85
84

83
82

81
80

79
78

77
76

75
74

3
2
1

10
2

10
1

10
0

99

97969594

92
91

93

90

C035
0-0

2-0
00-

003
3

C035
0-0

2-0
00-

003
4

C035
0-0

2-0
00-

003
5

C035
0-0

2-0
00-

003
0

C035
0-0

2-0
00-

002
9

C035
0-0

2-0
00-

002
8

T2100-00-268-0016-02

CITY OF EDINBURG

PARCEL 2

26
252415 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23

1
2

3
4

5
6 7

8

88
89

90
91

87
86

85

84

81
82

83

9
10

11
12

13
14

15
16

17
18

19
20

79
78

75
74

71

72
73

76
77

80

92
93

94
95

96
97

98
99

100
101

70
69

68
67

66
65

64
63

21
22

23 24 25 26
27

28
29

37
36 35 34

33
32

31
30

38 39 40
41

42
43

44
45

51
50

49
48

47
46

21
9 22

0

221
222
223

224
102

103
104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

62
61

60
59

58
57 56

55
54
53
52

20
9

21
0

21
1

21
2

21
3

21
4

21
5

21
6

21
7

21
8

20
8

20
7

20
6

20
5

20
4

20
3

20
2

20
1

20
0

19
9

198 179
180197
181196
182195
183194
184193
185192
186191
187190
188189

13
8

13
7

13
6

13
5

13
4

13
3

13
2

13
1

13
0

12
9

12
8

12
7

12
6

12
5

12
4

12
3

12
2

12
1

12
0

11
9

11
8

11
7

11
6

11
511
4

11
3

11
2

15 14 13 12 11 10
9

8
7

6
5

4
3

2

1
35 36 37 38 39

49

48

47

46

45 44

43

42

41

40

LOS LAGOS COUNTRY CLUB 1
2

3

4

5
6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13
14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

H.E.B. PARK
EDINBURG SOCCER STATIUM

29 30

34 33

28

35

16

CALEDONIAN ESTATES No. 2

PH. B
PH. A

LUMEN SUBDIVISION51
52

53
54 55 56 57

58
59 60

61 62
63 64 65 66

67
68

69
70 71

72
73

74
75

76
77

78
79

80
81
82

8384
8586

87888990919293949596979899100
101
102
103

104
105

106
107

108

109
110

111
112
113

114
115

116
117

118
119

120
121

1 2 3
4

5
67

8
9

10
11

12 13
14

15
16

17

18
19

20 21
22

23

2425
26

27

28
29
30

31

3233

34

35

37
38

39
40

41
42

43
44

45
46

47

48
49

50

36

W O O D S
D R  S

LI
N K

S  
D

R

L A G O  T A H O E

LA G O
E R I E

L U D D E N
D R

S T R E E T
O

LA G O
H U R O N

L O S  L A G O S  D R

V I E W  P O I N T  D R

ST
R

EE
T

L

P R O V I D E N C E  D
R

W
O O D S

D R  E

L A
G

O
 H

U R
O

N

L A G O  S U P E R I O R

ST
R

EE
T  

N

L A G O  W A S H I N G T O N

L A G O

H U R O N

M A C Q U A R I E  D R

S 
D

O
O

LI
TT

L E
 R

D

S E T O N  S
T

L A G O  D
E L T O N

L O S  L A G O S  D R

A R L I N A  D R

®
1 in = 400 ft

ZONING MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
ADRIAN GUZMAN

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

ZONING DISTRICTS
AGRICULTURE
AUTO-URBAN RESIDENTIAL
COMMERCIAL, GENERAL
COMMERCIAL, NEIGHBORHOOD
DOWNTOWN DISTRICT
INDUSTRIAL
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 5
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 7.1
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION MH
SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL
URBAN RESIDENTIAL
URBAN UNIVERSITY
CITY LIMITS



-01

15

LOS LAGOS

PH. 3
PH. 1

13
12

11
10
9
8
7
6
5
4

98

86

89
88

87

85
84

83
82

81
80

79
78

77
76

75
74

3
2
1

10
2

10
1

10
0

99

97969594

92
91

93

90

C035
0-0

2-0
00-

003
3

C035
0-0

2-0
00-

003
4

C035
0-0

2-0
00-

003
5

C035
0-0

2-0
00-

003
0

C035
0-0

2-0
00-

002
9

C035
0-0

2-0
00-

002
8

T2100-00-268-0016-02

CITY OF EDINBURG

PARCEL 2

26
252415 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23

1
2

3
4

5
6 7

8

88
89

90
91

87
86

85

84

81
82

83

9
10

11
12

13
14

15
16

17
18

19
20

79
78

75
74

71

72
73

76
77

80

92
93

94
95

96
97

98
99

100
101

70
69

68
67

66
65

64
63

21
22

23 24 25 26
27

28
29

37
36 35 34

33
32

31
30

38 39 40
41

42
43

44
45

51
50

49
48

47
46

21
9 22

0

221
222
223

224
102

103
104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

62
61

60
59

58
57 56

55
54
53
52

20
9

21
0

21
1

21
2

21
3

21
4

21
5

21
6

21
7

21
8

20
8

20
7

20
6

20
5

20
4

20
3

20
2

20
1

20
0

19
9

198 179
180197
181196
182195
183194
184193
185192
186191
187190
188189

13
8

13
7

13
6

13
5

13
4

13
3

13
2

13
1

13
0

12
9

12
8

12
7

12
6

12
5

12
4

12
3

12
2

12
1

12
0

11
9

11
8

11
7

11
6

11
511
4

11
3

11
2

15 14 13 12 11 10
9

8
7

6
5

4
3

2

1
35 36 37 38 39

49

48

47

46

45 44

43

42

41

40

LOS LAGOS COUNTRY CLUB 1
2

3

4

5
6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13
14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

H.E.B. PARK
EDINBURG SOCCER STATIUM

29 30

34 33

28

35

16

CALEDONIAN ESTATES No. 2

PH. B
PH. A

LUMEN SUBDIVISION51
52

53
54 55 56 57

58
59 60

61 62
63 64 65 66

67
68

69
70 71

72
73

74
75

76
77

78
79

80
81
82

8384
8586

87888990919293949596979899100
101
102
103

104
105

106
107

108

109
110

111
112
113

114
115

116
117

118
119

120
121

1 2 3
4

5
67

8
9

10
11

12 13
14

15
16

17

18
19

20 21
22

23

2425
26

27

28
29
30

31

3233

34

35

37
38

39
40

41
42

43
44

45
46

47

48
49

50

36

W O O D S
D R  S

LI
N K

S  
D

R

L A G O  T A H O E

LA G O
E R I E

L U D D E N
D R

S T R E E T
O

LA G O
H U R O N

L O S  L A G O S  D R

V I E W  P O I N T  D R

ST
R

EE
T

L

P R O V I D E N C E  D
R

W
O O D S

D R  E

L A
G

O
 H

U R
O

N

L A G O  S U P E R I O R

ST
R

EE
T  

N

L A G O  W A S H I N G T O N

L A G O

H U R O N

M A C Q U A R I E  D R

S 
D

O
O

LI
TT

L E
 R

D

S E T O N  S
T

L A G O  D
E L T O N

L O S  L A G O S  D R

A R L I N A  D R

®
1 in = 400 ft

MAILOUT AND SITE MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
ADRIAN GUZMAN

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE
300FT NOTIFICATION
CITY LIMITS



dcolina
Typewritten Text
aguzman12@rgv.rr.com

dcolina
Typewritten Text
UDC Sec. 2.301(D)(9)

dcolina
Typewritten Text
NC7.1



dcolina
Polygon





Zoning Board of Adjustment 
Site Photo for meeting of February 23, 2022 

ADRIAN GUZMAN 



  
Variance Request 

 

ERICA EDITH CANALES  Page 1 

Planning & Zoning Staff Report Prepared on:  February 8, 2022 
ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT Regular Meeting:  February 23, 2022 

Agenda Item 8C 
Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Section 3.201(C), Residential Use 
District Standards, Density, Lots 1 and 2, Stonebrook Estates Subdivision, located at 2002 & 2008 
Brandi Lane, as requested by Erica Edith Canales 
 

Request 
The applicant is requesting a variance to the City’s Unified Development Code (UDC), Section 
3.201 (C) as it pertains to density for multifamily developments. The applicant is proposing to 
construct 95 apartment units on a lot that allows a maximum of 62 units by UDC standards. 

Property Location and Vicinity 
The property is located at the northeast corner of Brandi Lane and South Jackson Road, and is 
zoned Urban Residential (UR) District. Adjacent zoning is Neighborhood Conservation (NC5) 
District to the north, Commercial Neighborhood (CN) District to the south and east, and Auto-
Urban (AU) District to the west. Surrounding land uses are residential with vacant land. 

Background and History 
The property is part of the Stonebrook Estates Subdivision, which was recorded on June 4, 1998. 
The applicant is proposing a multifamily development on the subject property. A Subdivision 
Application for re-plat of the Stonebrook Estates Subdivision was submitted on January 18, 2022. 
Review of the site plan submitted with the subdivision application showed that the intended 
development exceeded maximum density standards allowed by the UDC. An Application for a 
Variance Request was submitted on January 18, 2022, to accommodate the project. 

Staff mailed notice of this variance request to 23 neighboring property owners. No comments in 
favor or against this request had been received at the time this report was prepared. 

Analysis 
The property is comprised of Lots 1 & 2 of the Stonebrook Estates Subdivision with a combined 
area of 2.861 acres. The property is zoned Urban Residential (UR) District, the residential district 
that allows for the highest possible residential densities. UDC Section 3.201(C) allows a maximum 
of 21.55 dwelling units per acre for multifamily developments in this District. With this density, a 
maximum of 62 dwelling units are allowed on the 2.861 acre area proposed for this development. 

The applicant indicated that this multifamily development proposes 95 dwelling units on the 
subject property, which is 53.23% over the maximum density allowed in this District. 



Planning & Zoning Staff Report 

ERICA EDITH CANALES  Page 2 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends disapproval of this variance request. Urban Residential (UR) Zoning District 
held by the subject property allows the highest possible density of any residential district, a 
density intended only for areas with an urban character, such as around the downtown square.  
The applicant is proposing to exceed maximum density by over 50%.   

If approved, the applicant will need to comply with all other requirements during the permitting 
process. If approved, $40 fee, payable to the County of Hidalgo, County Clerk’s Office, for the 
recording of the ZBA order is also required. A location map, aerial map, photo, subdivision plat, 
site plan, and application from the property owner are attached for the Board’s consideration. 

 

Prepared by: Approved by: 
D. Austin Colina Kimberly A. Mendoza, MPA  
Planner I Director of Planning & Zoning  
 



S A
N

R A
U L

 A
V E

AN
TH

O
N

Y 
D

R

E D W A R D  D R

DA
N

 D
R

G
A

R
ZA

 S
T

L A S  P A L M A S  D R

N A U T I C A L  L N

GE
E N

A
S T

M A R Y  A V E

AS
H

 C
IR

ST
AC

EY
 S

T

DR
A

KE
NS

B
UR

G
 A

VE

C O
LV I N

 AV E

W  C A N T O N  R D

P H E A S A N T  D R

A N C I R
A

L N

M E S A  D R

S A N
A L E J A N D R O  S T

S A N
G A B R I E L  S T

S A N
M A N U E L  S T

C H A Y N A  A V E

I N E Z  A V ES JA
C

K
S O

N
 R

D

R I V E R  D R

B R A N D I  L N

F U E N T E  D E  G O Z O

S H A Y  L N

BO
N

N
IE

DR

J O H N  A V E

FU
E N

T E
D E

 P
A

Z

G
A

R
Z A

D R

KI
N

G
S

DR

G
A

R
ZA

 S
T

A L
L E

N  
D R

LE
SL

IE
 S

T

N O R M A  L N
SU

M
M

ER
FI

EL
D

 D
R

P O
S T

O
A

K
S  

R
DH A

R
V E

S T
 S

T

AN
A

C
U

A 
C

IR

M
E S

Q
U

I T
E

S T

S 
JA

C
K

SO
N

 R
D

M C L E O D  A V E

H O L L A N D  A V E

P E N R O S E  A V E

E L B R U S  A V E

VA N C O U V E R  A V E

M
AR

IA
 L

U
IZ

A 
D

R

LA
S 

C
R

U
CE

S 
D

R

O
C

EA
N

 V
IE

W
 D

R

®
1 in = 500 ft

AERIAL MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
ERICA E. CANALES

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE
CITY LIMITS



-02

-07

T2100-00-274-0014-

14

15

4

3

2

1

SUBD

BREWER

175.57'

95 94 93 92 91 90 89 88

ENCHANTED OAKS SUBD.
11 10 9 8 7 6 5 4 3 2

RINCON DE LAS FUENTES

35.0'

35.0'

38'
38'

38'
38'

38'
38'

39.0'
39.0'

39.0'

39.0'

35
.5'

35
.5'

35
.5'

35
.5'

35
.5'

35
.5'

35
.5'

32.
0'

32.
0'

32.
0'

32.
0'

38.0'

38.0'
38.0'

38.0'

38.0'
38.0'

35.0'
35.0'

35.0'

32.0'
32.0'

32.0'

50.0'

35.
0'

50.0'

50.0'

40.0'
40.0'

38.0'

35.0'

35.0'
35.0'

35.0'

32.0' 32.0'

39.0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

37

46
4544

4342
41

40
39

38
36

3534
333231

30292827
26

25 24 23 22

21
20

19
18

17

16

15

14

13

12

11

10

9
8

7
6

5

43
21

PH
. 1

PH. 2

PH
. 3

20

19

18

17

16

15

14

13

12

1110

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

-00

-00

-05

-03

-12

-12

-13

-00

M265
0-0

0-0
01-

000
7-

-10

6
-00

-17
-03

-00

PH
. 1

PH
. 2

29

28

27

26

25

24

23

22

21

20

19

18

17

1615
14

13

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

PLAZA
BUSINESS 
EDINBURG 

151413127 8 9 1011

LOT 1

VA
LL

E D
E L

AS
 FU

EN
TE

S

16

15

14

13

12

11

10
9 8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

CANTON BUS. CENTER

1
2
3
4

22

21

6
7

9
10
11
12

8

20

19

17

16

18

5

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30 14
15 13

SU
BD

. P
H.

 1
RI

O 
VE

RD
E

RIO VERDE

SUBD. PH. 2

SUBD. NO. 2

T2100-00-275-0016-

K2400-00-000-0008-

-02 -04

-08

M2650-00-001-0004-

-00
PEREZ
FLORENTINO

-16

-09

-05

-04

80 81
51

50

49
4847

92

83

93

82

55

54
53

52

797877

46454443

74
75

424140

76

90 9189

86 85 8473
72

71

87

88

95 94

59

58

57
56

61 60

98 97 9669

68
67

99

66 64 63 6265

70

32

27

29

28

24
25
26

23

3130

19
20
21

22

1
2

16

17
18 3

4
5

12
13

14 7
8
9

11

15 6

37

36

34
35

33

38
39

10

1

2

3

4

9

8

7

6

5

10

102
101

100
99

103
104

110 111 118 81
109 112 82117

10
5

10
6

10
7

10
8

11
3

11
4

11
5

11
6 83

98

97 96

84

85
8687

PH
AS

E I
II

ST
RO

NG
 SU

BD1

2

3

4

5

6

76

5

4 3 2 1

61

77

78

79

80

73

74

75

76

72

71

70

69

63
64

56

57

58
59
60

62

68

67

66
65

55
54

53
52

51
50
49
48
47

GA
RD

EN
IA 

SU
BD

.

17181920

98

107

116

125

134

143

152

161

WE
ST

 C
AN

TO
N 

ES
TA

TE
S

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

SO
UT

HW
ES

T E
ST

AT
ES 1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12 WI
ND

 R
OS

E E
ST

AT
ES

1

25

13 14

24

23

22

21

20

19

18

17

16

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

8 VILL
A LA

S FUENTES

19

10 11 12

13

14

15

16

17

30

29

28

27

26

25

24

22 23
21

20

19

18

2345678

ME
AD

OW
 BR

EE
ZE

 SU
BD

1 29

2 28

3 27

4 26

5 25

6 24

7 23

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

22

21

20

19

18

17

16

15

E.C
.I.S

.D
. S

UB
DI

VI
SI

ON
 N

o. 
3

AS
HL

EY
 ES

TA
TE

S

18
19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

17

16

15

14

13

12

11

3

16
23

28

29

30 31

4567891011

12 13
14

15 16

17

18 19

20

21 22

23

24 25

26

27

CITRUS ESTATES

4039383736

48 47

41

46 45 44 43 42

51 52 53 54 55 56 57

64 63 62 61 60 59 58

67 68 69 70 71 72 73

80 79 78 77 76 75 74

83 84 85 86 87 88 89

97 96 95 94 93 92

34 33 32 31

UNIT NO. 1

234567

8 9 10 11 12 13

20212223242526

27 28 29 30

1

ANCIRA ESTATES

234

5

6
7

8

9
10
11

12

13

14

15
16

17
18

1920

21

22 23

24252627

SUBDIVISION NO.2
8 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

9091 99 100 101 102

103

104

110

111

112

113114115

116 117 118

PARK

SUBDIVISION
UNIT 3

27 30 31 34 35 38 3926

VAN-MARC TERRACE SUBD.

CITRUS ESTATES SUBD.

105

CITRUS ESTATES

8

UN
IT 

No
. 4

 

63 62 61 60

47 46 45 44 43 42

CI
TR

US
 ES

TA
TE

S S
UB

D.
 U

NI
T N

o,4123

4 5 6

121110

9 8 7

15 14 13

16 17 18

21 20 19

22 23 24

RE
GE

NC
Y S

QU
AR

E

63 62

59
58
57
56
55
54
53
52
51
50

17 18

16
15
14
13
12
11
10
9
8
7
6
5
4
3
2
1

WI
LL

OW
 C

RE
EK

 SU
BD

. 2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

RI
VE

RO
AK

S S
UB

D.

1

2
3
4

5
6

7
8

9
1011

12

13

14

15
16

17
18

19

20
21
22

23 24 25 26 27 28

29

303132333435

36 37 38 39 40 41 42

434445464748495051

52

53
54

55

56

57
58
59

60

61

62
63

6465

66 70
71

72
73

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

1920
21

39

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50 51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

59

1 2 3

4
5

STONEBROOK

ESTATES

7

55

49
48

7978
64

66

67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77

UN
IT 

No
. 5

41 40 38

37
36
35
34
33
32
31
30
29
28
27
26
25
24
23
22
21

2019

121314

35 36 37

40 41 42 43

44454647

52 53 54 55

56575859

4
5
6
7
8
9
1011

12
13

14

15

161718

20

21

22

23
2425

26

27

28
29

SU
MM

ER
FIE

LD
 SU

BD
.

10

15
LOT 1

19

20

21
22
23
24

25
26
27
28

29

30
31 32 33

38 39

4849

50 51

6061

ABUNDANT GRACE

LA
 ES

TA
NC

IA 
SU

BD15

34

35

49

50

65

66

81

82

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

49

51
52

50

53

55

57

56

54

58

59

60

1213 614 715 816 91011
20

21

1719

2

1

5
4

3

18

38

35

37 414039 42 48474544

70 6371 64656667686972

777675 8274 81807978 83

878889909192 8593 86

10496 103102101100999897

111112113114 107115 108116 109110117

127119 126125124123122121 128120

136137138139 132133134135 130

148147146145144143142 149141

131

36
43

140

118 129

106

95

73

62

84

105

46

61

150JACKSON HEIGHTS

94

S A
N

R A
U L

 A
V E

AN
TH

O
N

Y 
D

R

E D W A R D  D R

DA
N

 D
R

G
A

R
ZA

 S
T

L A S  P A L M A S  D R

N A U T I C A L  L N

GE
E N

A
S T

M A R Y  A V E

AS
H

 C
IR

ST
AC

EY
 S

T

DR
A

KE
NS

B
UR

G
 A

VE

C O
LV I N

 AV E

W  C A N T O N  R D

P H E A S A N T  D R

A N C I R
A

L N

M E S A  D R

S A N
A L E J A N D R O  S T

S A N
G A B R I E L  S T

S A N
M A N U E L  S T

C H A Y N A  A V E

I N E Z  A V ES JA
C

K
S O

N
 R

D

R I V E R  D R

B R A N D I  L N

F U E N T E  D E  G O Z O

S H A Y  L N

BO
N

N
IE

DR

J O H N  A V E

FU
E N

T E
D E

 P
A

Z

G
A

R
Z A

D R

KI
N

G
S

DR

G
A

R
ZA

 S
T

A L
L E

N  
D R

LE
SL

IE
 S

T

N O R M A  L N
SU

M
M

ER
FI

EL
D

 D
R

P O
S T

O
A

K
S  

R
DH A

R
V E

S T
 S

T

AN
A

C
U

A 
C

IR

M
E S

Q
U

I T
E

S T

S 
JA

C
K

SO
N

 R
D

M C L E O D  A V E

H O L L A N D  A V E

P E N R O S E  A V E

E L B R U S  A V E

VA N C O U V E R  A V E

M
AR

IA
 L

U
IZ

A 
D

R

LA
S 

C
R

U
CE

S 
D

R

O
C

EA
N

 V
IE

W
 D

R

®
1 in = 500 ft

ZONING MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
ERICA E. CANALES

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

ZONING DISTRICTS
AGRICULTURE
AUTO-URBAN RESIDENTIAL
COMMERCIAL, GENERAL
COMMERCIAL, NEIGHBORHOOD
DOWNTOWN DISTRICT
INDUSTRIAL
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 5
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 7.1
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION MH
SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL
URBAN RESIDENTIAL
URBAN UNIVERSITY
CITY LIMITS



-02

-07

-02

-03

T2100-00-274-0014-

14

15

4

3

2

1

SUBD

BREWER

95 94 93 92 91 90 89 88

ENCHANTED OAKS SUBD.
11 10 9 8 7 6 5 4 3 2

RINCON DE LAS FUENTES

35.0'

35.0'

38'
38'

38'
38'

38'
38'

39.0'
39.0'

39.0'

39.0'

35
.5'

35
.5'

35
.5'

35
.5'

35
.5'

35
.5'

35
.5'

32.
0'

32.
0'

32.
0'

32.
0'

38.0'

38.0'
38.0'

38.0'

38.0'
38.0'

35.0'
35.0'

35.0'

32.0'
32.0'

32.0'

50.0'

35.
0'

50.0'

50.0'

40.0'
40.0'

38.0'

35.0'

35.0'
35.0'

35.0'

32.0' 32.0'

39.0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

50.
0'

37

46
4544

4342
41

40
39

38
36

3534
333231

30292827
26

25 24 23 22

21
20

19
18

17

16

15

14

13

12

11

10

9
8

7
6

5

43
21

PH
. 1

PH. 2

PH
. 3

20

19

18

17

16

15

14

13

12

1110

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

-00

-00

-05

-03

-12

-12

-13

-00

M265
0-0

0-0
01-

000
7-

-10

6
-00

-17
-03

-00

PH
. 1

PH
. 2

29

28

27

26

25

24

23

22

21

20

19

18

17

15

14

13

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

PLAZA
BUSINESS 
EDINBURG 

151413129 1011

LOT 1

VA
LL

E D
E L

AS
 FU

EN
TE

S

16

15

14

13

12

11

10
9 8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

CANTON BUS. CENTER
1
2
3
4

22

21

6
7

9
10
11
12

8

20

19

17

16

18

5

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30 15 13

SU
BD

. P
H.

 1
RI

O 
VE

RD
E

RIO VERDE

SUBD. PH. 2

SUBD. NO. 2

T2100-00-275-0016-

K2400-00-000-0008-

-02 -04

-08

-03
RODRIGUEZ

-00
PEREZ
FLORENTINO

-16

-09

-05

-04

80 81
51

50

49
4847

92

83

93

82

55

54
53

52

797877

46454443

74
75

424140

76

90 9189

86 85 8473
72

71

87

88

95 94

59

58

57
56

61 60

98 97 9669

68
67

99

66 64 63 6265

70

32

27

29

28

24
25
26

23

3130

19
20
21

22

1
2

16

17
18 3

4
5

12
13

14 7
8
9

11

15 6

37

36

34
35

33

38
39

10

1

2

3

4

9

8

7

6

5

10

102
101

100
99

103
104

110 111 118 81
109 112 82117

10
5

10
6

10
7

10
8

11
3

11
4

11
5

11
6 83

98

97 96

84

85
8687

PH
AS

E I
II

ST
RO

NG
 SU

BD1

2

3

4

5

6

76

5

4 3 2 1

61

77

78

79

80

73

74

75

76

72

71

70

69

63
64

56

57

58
59

60

62

68

67

66
65

55
54

53
52

51
50
49
48
47
46

GA
RD

EN
IA 

SU
BD

.

17181920

98

107

116

125

134

143

152

161

WE
ST

 C
AN

TO
N 

ES
TA

TE
S

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

SO
UT

HW
ES

T E
ST

AT
ES 1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12 WI
ND

 R
OS

E E
ST

AT
ES

1

25

24

23

22

21

20

19

18

17

16

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

8 VILL
A LA

S FUENTES

19

10 11 12

13

14

15

16

17

30

29

28

27

26

25

24

22 23
21

20

19

18

2345678

ME
AD

OW
 BR

EE
ZE

 SU
BD

1 29

2 28

3 27

4 26

5 25

6 24

7 23

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

22

21

20

19

18

17

16

15

E.C
.I.S

.D
. S

UB
DI

VI
SI

ON
 N

o. 
3

AS
HL

EY
 ES

TA
TE

S

18
19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

17

16

15

14

13

12

11

3

16
123

28

29

30 31

32

33

4567891011

12 13
14

15 16

17

18 19

20

21 22

23

24 25

26

27

CITRUS ESTATES

4039383736

48 47

41

46 45 44 43 42

51 52 53 54 55 56 57

64 63 62 61 60 59 58

67 68 69 70 71 72 73

80 79 78 77 76 75 74

83 84 85 86 87 88 89

97 96 95 94 93 92

34 33 32 31

AU
ST

IN
 TE

RR
AC

E

112

UNIT NO. 1

234567

8 9 10 11 12 13 14

20212223242526

27 28 29 30

1

ANCIRA ESTATES

234

5

6
7

8

9
10
11

12

13

14

15
16

17
18

1920

21

22 23

24252627

SUBDIVISION NO.2
8 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

9091 99 100 101 102

103

104

110

111

112

113114115

116 117 118

PARK

SUBDIVISION
UNIT 3

27 30 31 34 35 38 39 4225 26

VAN-MARC TERRACE SUBD.

CITRUS ESTATES SUBD.

105

109

CITRUS ESTATES

8

UN
IT 

No
. 4

 

63 62 61 60

47 46 45 44 43 42

CI
TR

US
 ES

TA
TE

S S
UB

D.
 U

NI
T N

o,4123

4 5 6

121110

9 8 7

15 14 13

16 17 18

21 20 19

22 23 24

RE
GE

NC
Y S

QU
AR

E

63 62

59
58
57
56
55
54
53
52
51
50

17 18

16
15
14
13
12
11
10
9
8
7
6
5
4
3
2
1

WI
LL

OW
 C

RE
EK

 SU
BD

. 2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

RI
VE

RO
AK

S S
UB

D.

1

2
3
4

5
6

7
8

9
1011

12

13

14

15
16

17
18

19

20
21
22

23 24 25 26 27 28

29

303132333435

36 37 38 39 40 41 42

434445464748495051

52

53
54

55

56

57
58
59

60

61

62
63

6465

66

67 69

70
71

72
73

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

1920

21

39

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50 51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

59

1 2 3

4
5

STONEBROOK

ESTATES

7

55

49
48

7978
64

66

67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77

UN
IT 

No
. 5

41 40 38

37
36
35
34
33
32
31
30
29
28
27
26
25
24
23
22
21

2019

121314

35 36 37

40 41 42 43

44454647

52 53 54 55

56575859

3
4
5
6
7
8
9
1011

12
13

14

15

16171819

20

21

22

23
2425

26

27

28
29

30313233

SU
MM

ER
FIE

LD
 SU

BD
.

10

15
LOT 1

161718
19

20

21
22
23
24

25
26
27
28
29

30
31 32 33

38 39

4849

50 51

6061

ABUNDANT GRACE

LA
 ES

TA
NC

IA 
SU

BD15

34

35

49

50

65

66

81

82

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

49

51
52

50

53

55

57

56

54

58

59

60

1213 614 715 816 91011
20

21

1719

2

1

5
4

3

18

38

35

37 414039 42 48474544

70 6371 64656667686972

777675 8274 81807978 83

878889909192 8593 86

10496 103102101100999897

111112113114 107115 108116 109110117

127119 126125124123122121 128120

136137138139 132133134135 130

148147146145144143142 149141

131

36
43

140

118 129

106

95

73

62

84

105

46

61

150JACKSON HEIGHTS

94

G
A

R
ZA

 S
T

L A S  P A L M A S  D R

E D W A R D  D R

SA
N 

R
AU

L 
AV

E

AN
TH

O
N

Y 
D

R

BO
N

N
IE

DR

DA
N

 D
R

G E
E N

A
S T

M A R Y  A V E

AS
H

 C
IR

ST
AC

EY
 S

T

DR
A

KE
NS

B
UR

G
 A

VE

C O
LV I N

 AV E

S A N
M A N U E L  S T P H E A S A N T  D R

A N C I R
A

L N

M E S A  D R

W  C A N T O N  R D

S JA
C

K
S O

N
 R

D

R I V E R  D R

C H A Y N A  A V E

I N E Z  A V E

B R A N D I  L N

F U E N T E  D E  G O Z O

S H A Y  L N

FU
E N

T E
D E

 P
A

Z

J O H N  A V E

G
A

R
Z A

D R

KI
N

G
S

DR

G
A

R
ZA

 S
T

A L
L E

N  
D R

LE
SL

IE
 S

T

N O R M A  L N

AN
A

C
U

A 
C

IR

M
E S

Q
U

I T
E

S T

S 
JA

C
K

SO
N

 R
D

SU
M

M
E R

F I
E L

D
 D

R

P O
S T

O
A

K
S  

R
DH A

R
V E

S T
 S

T

M C L E O D  A V E

H O L L A N D  A V E

P E N R O S E  A V E

E L B R U S  A V E

VA N C O U V E R  A V E

M
AR

IA
 L

U
IZ

A 
D

R

LA
S 

C
R

U
CE

S 
D

R

O
C

EA
N

 V
IE

W
 D

R

®
1 in = 500 ft

MAILOUT AND SITE MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
ERICA E. CANALES

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE
300FT NOTIFICATION
CITY LIMITS



dcolina
Typewritten Text
UDC Sec. 3.201(C)

dcolina
Typewritten Text
2002-2008 Brandi Lane

dcolina
Line

dcolina
Line

dcolina
Typewritten Text
Stonebrook



dcolina
Polygon









Zoning Board of Adjustment 
Site Photos for meeting of February 23, 2022 

ERICA EDITH CANALES 



  

Variance Request 

 

RICARDO CABALLERO – 1021  Page 1 
 

Planning & Zoning Staff Report Prepared on: February 10, 2022 

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT Regular Meeting:  February 23, 2022 

Agenda Item 8D 

Consider Variances to the City’s Unified Development Code: 1) Section 3.201(C), Density; 2) Section 

3.303, Multifamily Lot and Building Standards, Lot Area; 3) Section 3.303 Multifamily Lot and Building 

Standards, Lot Width; 4) Section 10.405, Parking Lot Bufferyards; and 5) Section 9.301, Parking Space 

Standards, Driving Aisle Width, Lot 18, Block 263, West Addition to Edinburg Subdivision, located at 

1021 West Cano Street, as requested by Ricardo Caballero 
 

Request 

The applicant is requesting five variances to the City’s Unified Development Code (UDC) regarding 

the following regulations: residential density, lot width, lot area, parking lot bufferyards, and driving 

aisle width for a multifamily development. Specifically, the applicant is proposing to construct eight 

apartment units on a lot that allows a maximum of four units by UDC Standards. The applicant is also 

proposing this multifamily development on a lot that does not meet minimum size requirements for 

this type of development. Parking for these multifamily units does not include the required bufferyard 

along the street right-of-way (ROW). Finally, the maneuvering space for some of the parking spaces 

provided does not meet UDC standards. 

Property Location and Vicinity 

The property is located at the northeast corner of West Cano Street and South 1st Avenue.  Zoning 

for this lot is Urban Residential (UR) District. Adjacent zoning is Commercial General (CG) District to 

the north, and Urban Residential (UR) District to the south, east, and west. Surrounding land uses are 

residential and commercial. 

Background and History 

The West Addition to Edinburg Subdivision was filed on September 21, 1946.  The applicant is 

proposing a multifamily development on the subject property. A building permit application was 

submitted for this address on September 27, 2021, and was disapproved due to not meeting site 

requirements.   

An application for a variance to the Zoning Board of Adjustments was submitted to the City on January 

25, 2021, to address some of the issues related to the building permit application submitted.  The 

Variance application was originally submitted for lot density only, and additional requested variances 

were added based on an evaluation of the site plan submitted by the applicant and staff meeting with 

the applicant representative. 

Staff mailed notice of this variance request to 32 neighboring property owners. No comments in favor 

or against this request had been received at the time this report was prepared. 

  



Planning & Zoning Staff Report 

RICARDO CABALLERO – 1021  Page 2 
 

Analysis 

The subject property has 50 ft. of width and a lot depth of 142 ft. for a total lot area of 7,100 sq. ft. 

The property is zoned Urban Residential (UR) District, the District that allows for the highest possible 

residential densities. UDC Section 3.201(C) allows a maximum of 21.55 dwelling units per acre for 

multifamily developments in this District. With this density, a maximum of four dwelling units are 

allowed on this 0.163 acre lot. The site plan submitted for this location shows eight residential units 

proposed for this development, 100% over the maximum density allowed. 

UDC Section 3.303 requires a minimum lot width of 100 ft. for multifamily developments in the Urban 

Residential (UR) District. The lot for the proposed development has a width of 50 ft., 50% below the 

minimum requirement.  

UDC Section 3.303 also requires a minimum lot area of 10,000 sq. ft. The lot proposed for this project 

is 7,100 sq. ft., 29% below the minimum requirement. 

The site plan submitted for this project shows parking spaces up to the property line along South 1st 

Avenue. UDC Section 10.405 requires a minimum bufferyard of 4 ft. between the property line and 

the outside edge of these parking spaces.  

The access for parking along the alley to the north of the subject property lacks the required 23 ft. 

driving aisle width required by UDC Section 9.301. The distance provided for parking maneuvering is 

approximately 18 ft., five feet (or 21.74%) shorter than the minimum required.  

Recommendation 

Staff recommends disapproval of all variances requested. The number of apartment units proposed 

for this location exceeds the maximum capacity of a lot of this size. Urban Residential (UR) Zoning 

District held by the subject property allows the highest possible density of any residential district. The 

applicant is proposing to exceed this density by 100%. UDC guidelines should be followed for lot area 

and lot width requirements for multifamily developments, allowing for adequate spacing. Parking 

bufferyards are needed for safety and separation between parking spaces and the street ROW. 

Adequate maneuvering space should be provided for all parking locations. 

The reason for this request listed on the application cited property constraints. However, no viable 

hardship has been established, and none of the required findings and limitations for variance 

approval, as per UDC Section 14.404(D), have been met for this case. 

If approved, the applicant will need to comply with all other requirements during the permitting 

process. If approved, $40 fee, payable to the County of Hidalgo, County Clerk’s Office, for the 

recording of the ZBA order is also required. A location map, aerial map, photo, subdivision plat, site 

plan, and application from the property owner are attached for the Board’s consideration. 

Prepared by: Approved by: 

D. Austin Colina Kimberly A. Mendoza, MPA  

Planner I Director of Planning & Zoning  



S  
5 T

H  
AV

E

W  U N I V E R S I T Y  D R
W  U N I V E R S I T Y  D R

W  C A N O  S T

W  S T U B B S  S T

W  M A H L  S T

W  F AY  S T

W  S A M A N O  S T

W  C H A M P I O N  S T

S 
4T

H 
AV

E

S  
5 T

H  
AV

E

S 
2 N

D
 A

V E

S  
1 S

T  
A V

E

S 
3R

D
 A

VE

S  
J O

E  
O

C
H O

A  
A V

E

W  C H A M P I O N  S T

W  S A M A N O  S T

W  S T U B B S  S T

W  F AY  S T

N  4
T H  A

V E

N 
5T

H 
AV

E

®
1 in = 400 ft

AERIAL MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
RICARDO CABALLERO / 1021 W CANO ST

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE
CITY LIMITS



CO
ND

OS
MA

NO
R

ED
IN

BU
RG

E3200-00-00I-0005-00

6

6

1 2

1012 11

1 2 3

138
1012 11 9

 4 51 2 3

171
1012 11 9 8

 4 51 2 3

182
71012 11 9 8

 4 51 2 3

215
71012 11 9 8

6 4 51 2 3

226
71012 11 9 8

1726 25 24 23 22 21 20 19 18 17A 16 15 13 12 11 10 9 8 7 6 5 4 3
2
1

314
6 4 51 2 3

6 4 5

79 8

1 2 3

1012 11
303

6 4 5

79 8

1 2 3

10
12 11

270

259
79 81012 11

6 4 51 2 3

SUBDIVISIONBIGGS

SU
BD

.

SUBDIVISION

LOT 3

LOT 2

BL
K. 

2

BL
K. 

1

GA
TE

WA
Y C

ITY
 SU

BD
.

16
15
14

13
12
11
10
9
8
7
6
5
4

3

2

1

UNIT No.1

1

2

UNIT No.1

2

UN
IT 

No
.2

T2100-00-273-0015-

T2100-00-273-0010-

T2100-00-273-0007-

-06

-08

-12
-11

6 5 4 3 2 1

12

1

1 2

12 11

9

1 2 3

1012 11
271

260
21 3 5 4

1112 10 9 8

6

7

269
21 3 5 4

1112 10 9 8

6

7

12

 4

9 8

1 2 3

1012 11
302

 4 5

79 8

1 2 3

1012 11
315

304
21 3 5 4

1112 10 9 8

6

7

21 3 5 4

1112 10 9 8
313

6

7

6 4 5

79 8

6 4 5

1 2 3

1012 11

1 2 3

346

79 81012 11
359

348
21 3 5 4

1112 10 9 8

21 3 5 4

6

7

6

357
1112 10 9 8

21 3 5 4

7

6

5 4 3 2 1

23 1

212019

2324 22

1 2 3 4 5 6

1011 9 8 7

141617 15 13

9532 4 76 8

1110 12

261

268

16
15
14
13
12
11
10
9
8
7
6
5
4
3

3

4

5

6

SOUTHWEST ADDITION

6

2

123456

WOOD SUBDIVISION24 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16 15 14 13 12 10 5678911

WESTVIEW PLACE
171615141312

31 30 29 28 27 26

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 1121 3

42 4041 3839 37 3536 3334 32

1 2 3 54 6 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 6

12 11 10 9 8 7 12 1011 9 8 7 12 1011 9 8 7

18 1617 15 14 13 18 141617 15 13 18 141617 15 13

1 2 43 65 87 109 1211 1 9532 4 76 8

1110 12 1 9532 4 76 8

1110 12

264 263 262

267266265

UNIT No.2

11121314151617181920

21 22 2423 25 26 27 28 29 30

VALLEYVIEW SUBDIVISION

12345678910
11

12
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22

1 2 3 4 5

STYRON SUBD.

MAVERICK SUBD.

HINOJOSA

4

18

25

12

18

1

WEST ADDITION TO EDINBURG

5

15

10

N.C.N.B. S
UBDIVISION

LOT 1
LOT 2

1

1234

2

4 3

1C

1B

1A

3

5

8
7

6

5

4

10

1

UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS - PAN AMERICAN

1

2

UNIVERSITY PLAZA

LOT 1

SLUMDAWG

6 4 52 3

225
71012 11 9 8

1

78

SAN BENITO

BANK & TRUST

NO.1LOT 1

S  
5 T

H  
AV

E

W  U N I V E R S I T Y  D R
W  U N I V E R S I T Y  D R

W  C A N O  S T

W  S T U B B S  S T

W  M A H L  S T

W  F AY  S T

W  S A M A N O  S T

W  C H A M P I O N  S T

S 
4T

H 
AV

E

S  
5 T

H  
AV

E

S 
2 N

D
 A

V E

S  
1 S

T  
A V

E

S 
3R

D
 A

VE

S  
J O

E  
O

C
H O

A  
A V

E

W  C H A M P I O N  S T

W  S A M A N O  S T

W  S T U B B S  S T

W  F AY  S T

N  4
T H  A

V E

N 
5T

H 
AV

E

®
1 in = 400 ft

ZONING MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
RICARDO CABALLERO / 1021 W CANO ST

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

ZONING DISTRICTS
AGRICULTURE
AUTO-URBAN RESIDENTIAL
COMMERCIAL, GENERAL
COMMERCIAL, NEIGHBORHOOD
DOWNTOWN DISTRICT
INDUSTRIAL
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 5
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 7.1
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION MH
SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL
URBAN RESIDENTIAL
URBAN UNIVERSITY
CITY LIMITS



CO
ND

OS
MA

NO
R

ED
IN

BU
RG

E3200-00-00I-0005-00

6

6

1 2

1012 11

1 2 3

138
1012 11 9

 4 51 2 3

171
1012 11 9 8

 4 51 2 3

182
71012 11 9 8

 4 51 2 3

215
71012 11 9 8

6 4 51 2 3

226
71012 11 9 8

1726 25 24 23 22 21 20 19 18 17A 16 15 13 12 11 10 9 8 7 6 5 4 3
2
1

314
6 4 51 2 3

6 4 5

79 8

1 2 3

1012 11
303

6 4 5

79 8

1 2 3

10
12 11

270

259
79 81012 11

6 4 51 2 3

SUBDIVISIONBIGGS

SU
BD

.

SUBDIVISION

LOT 3

LOT 2

BL
K. 

2

BL
K. 

1

GA
TE

WA
Y C

ITY
 SU

BD
.

16
15
14

13
12
11
10
9
8
7
6
5
4

3

2

1

UNIT No.1

1

2

UNIT No.1

2

UN
IT 

No
.2

T2100-00-273-0015-

T2100-00-273-0010-

T2100-00-273-0007-

-06

-08

-12
-11

6 5 4 3 2 1

12

1

1 2

12 11

9

1 2 3

1012 11
271

260
21 3 5 4

1112 10 9 8

6

7

269
21 3 5 4

1112 10 9 8

6

7

12

 4

9 8

1 2 3

1012 11
302

 4 5

79 8

1 2 3

1012 11
315

304
21 3 5 4

1112 10 9 8

6

7

21 3 5 4

1112 10 9 8
313

6

7

6 4 5

79 8

6 4 5

1 2 3

1012 11

1 2 3

346

79 81012 11
359

348
21 3 5 4

1112 10 9 8

21 3 5 4

6

7

6

357
1112 10 9 8

21 3 5 4

7

6

5 4 3 2 1

23 1

212019

2324 22

1 2 3 4 5 6

1011 9 8 7

141617 15 13

9532 4 76 8

1110 12

261

268

16
15
14
13
12
11
10
9
8
7
6
5
4
3

3

4

5

6

SOUTHWEST ADDITION

6

2

123456

WOOD SUBDIVISION24 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16 15 14 13 12 10 5678911

WESTVIEW PLACE
171615141312

31 30 29 28 27 26

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 1121 3

42 4041 3839 37 3536 3334 32

1 2 3 54 6 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 6

12 11 10 9 8 7 12 1011 9 8 7 12 1011 9 8 7

18 1617 15 14 13 18 141617 15 13 18 141617 15 13

1 2 43 65 87 109 1211 1 9532 4 76 8

1110 12 1 9532 4 76 8

1110 12

264 263 262

267266265

UNIT No.2

11121314151617181920

21 22 2423 25 26 27 28 29 30

VALLEYVIEW SUBDIVISION

12345678910
11

12
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22

1 2 3 4 5

STYRON SUBD.

MAVERICK SUBD.

HINOJOSA

4

18

25

12

18

1

WEST ADDITION TO EDINBURG

5

15

10

N.C.N.B. S
UBDIVISION

LOT 1
LOT 2

1

1234

2

4 3

1C

1B

1A

3

5

8
7

6

5

4

10

1

UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS - PAN AMERICAN

1

2

UNIVERSITY PLAZA

LOT 1

SLUMDAWG

6 4 52 3

225
71012 11 9 8

1

78

SAN BENITO

BANK & TRUST

NO.1LOT 1

S  
5 T

H  
AV

E

W  U N I V E R S I T Y  D R
W  U N I V E R S I T Y  D R

W  C A N O  S T

W  S T U B B S  S T

W  M A H L  S T

W  F AY  S T

W  S A M A N O  S T

W  C H A M P I O N  S T

S 
4T

H 
AV

E

S  
5 T

H  
AV

E

S 
2 N

D
 A

V E

S  
1 S

T  
A V

E

S 
3R

D
 A

VE

S  
J O

E  
O

C
H O

A  
A V

E

W  C H A M P I O N  S T

W  S A M A N O  S T

W  S T U B B S  S T

W  F AY  S T

N  4
T H  A

V E

N 
5T

H 
AV

E

®
1 in = 400 ft

MAILOUT AND SITE MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
RICARDO CABALLERO / 1021 W CANO ST

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE
300FT NOTIFICATION
CITY LIMITS





dcolina
Rectangle





Zoning Board of Adjustment 
Site Photos for meeting of February 23, 2022 

RICARDO CABALLERO - 1021 WEST CANO STREET 



  

Variance Request 

 

RICARDO CABALLERO - 1126  Page 1 
 

Planning & Zoning Staff Report Prepared on:  February 10, 2022 

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT Regular Meeting:  February 23, 2022 

Agenda Item 8E 

Consider Variances to the City’s Unified Development Code: 1) Section 3.201(C), Density; 2) Section 

3.303, Multifamily Lot and Building Standards, Lot Area; 3) Section 3.303 Multifamily Lot and Building 

Standards, Lot Width; 4) Section 10.405, Parking Lot Bufferyards; and 5) Section 9.301, Parking Space 

Standards, Driving Aisle Width, Lot 1, Block 265, West Addition to Edinburg Subdivision, located at 

1126 West Cano Street, as requested by Ricardo Caballero 

 

Request 

The applicant is requesting five variances to the City’s Unified Development Code (UDC) regarding 

the following regulations: residential density, lot width, lot area, parking lot bufferyards, and driving 

aisle width for a multifamily development. Specifically, the applicant is proposing to construct eight 

apartment units on a lot that allows a maximum of four units by UDC Standards. The applicant is also 

proposing this multifamily development on a lot that does not meet minimum size requirements for 

this type of development. Parking for these multifamily units does not include the required bufferyard 

along the street right-of-way (ROW). Finally, the maneuvering space for some of the parking spaces 

provided does not meet UDC standards. 

Property Location and Vicinity 

The property is located at the southeast corner of West Cano Street and South Joe Ochoa Avenue.  

Zoning for this lot is Urban Residential (UR) District. Adjacent zoning is Urban Residential (UR) District 

to the north, south, and east, and Commercial General (CG) District to the west. Surrounding land 

uses are residential and commercial. 

Background and History 

The West Addition to Edinburg Subdivision was filed on September 21, 1946. The location is one block 

south of West University Drive, directly south from the UTRGV main campus. The applicant is 

proposing a multifamily development on the subject property. 

A Zoning Board of Adjustment Request for Variance Application was submitted to the City on January 

25, 2021. The application originally requested a variance for lot density only, and additional requests 

were added as needed based on an evaluation of the site plan submitted by the applicant and staff 

meeting with the architect. 

Staff mailed notice of this variance request to 23 neighboring property owners. No comments in favor 

or against this request had been received at the time this report was prepared. 

  



Planning & Zoning Staff Report 

RICARDO CABALLERO - 1126  Page 2 
 

Analysis 

The subject property has 50 ft. of width and a lot depth of 142 ft. for a total lot area of 7,100 sq. ft. 

The property is zoned Urban Residential (UR) District, the District that allows for the highest possible 

residential densities. UDC Section 3.201(C) allows a maximum of 21.55 dwelling units per acre for 

multifamily developments in this District. With this density, a maximum of four dwelling units are 

allowed on this 0.163 acre lot. The site plan submitted for this location shows eight residential units 

proposed for this development, 100% over the maximum density allowed. 

UDC Section 3.303 requires a minimum lot width of 100 ft. for multifamily developments in the Urban 

Residential (UR) District. The lot for the proposed development has a width of 50 ft., 50% below the 

minimum requirement.  

UDC Section 3.303 also requires a minimum lot area of 10,000 sq. ft. The lot proposed for this project 

is 7,100 sq. ft., 29% below the minimum requirement. 

The site plan submitted for this project shows parking spaces up to the property line along South Joe 

Ochoa Avenue. UDC Section 10.405 requires a minimum bufferyard of 4 ft. between the property line 

and the outside edge of these parking spaces.  

The access for parking along the alley to the south of the subject property lacks the required 23 ft. 

maneuvering aisle width required by UDC Section 9.301. The distance provided for parking 

maneuvering is approximately 18 ft., five feet (or 21.74%) shorter than the minimum required. 

Recommendation 

Staff recommends disapproval of all variances requested. The number of apartment units proposed 

for this location exceeds the maximum capacity of a lot of this size. Urban Residential (UR) Zoning 

District held by the subject property allows the highest possible density of any residential district. The 

applicant is proposing to exceed this density by 100%. UDC guidelines should be followed for lot area 

and lot width requirements for multifamily developments, allowing for adequate spacing. Parking 

bufferyards are needed for safety and separation between parking spaces and the street ROW. 

Adequate maneuvering space should be provided for all parking locations. 

The applicant indicated the basis for the request is due to property constraints. However, no viable 

hardship has been established, and none of the required findings and limitations for variance 

approval, as per UDC Section 14.404(D), have been met for this case. 

If approved, the applicant will need to comply with all other requirements during the permitting 

process. If approved, $40 fee, payable to the County of Hidalgo, County Clerk’s Office, for the 

recording of the ZBA order is also required. A location map, aerial map, photo, subdivision plat, site 

plan, and application from the property owner are attached for the Board’s consideration. 

Prepared by: Approved by: 

D. Austin Colina Kimberly A. Mendoza, MPA  

Planner I Director of Planning & Zoning  



W  U N I V E R S I T Y  D R
W  U N I V E R S I T Y  D R

W  C A N O  S T

W  F AY  S T

S 
SU

G
AR

 R
D

W  K U H N  S T

W  S A M A N O  S T

W  M A H L  S T

S 
4T

H 
AV

E

S 
2 N

D
 A

V E

S  
1 S

T  
A V

E

S 
3R

D
 A

VE

S  
J O

E  
O

C
H O

A  
A V

E

N 
SU

G
A

R 
R

D

N  4
T H  A

V E

W  C H A M P I O N  S T

W  S A M A N O  S T

W  S T U B B S  S T

W  F AY  S T

®
1 in = 400 ft

AERIAL MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
RICARDO CABALLERO/ 1126 WEST CANO STREET

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE
CITY LIMITS



CO
ND

OS
MA

NO
R

ED
IN

BU
RG

E3200-00-00I-0005-00

12

1726 25 24 23 22 21 20 19 18 17A 16 15 13 12 11 10 9 8 7 6 5 4 3
2
1

LO
T1

A

314
4 51 2 3

4

9

1 2 3

1012 11
303

1 2 3

10
12 11

12 11

1

SUBDIVISIONBIGGS

SUBD.
CARWASH
CARWASH

SU
BD

.
SU

GA
R 

PL
AZ

A

SUBDIVISION

LOT 4 LOT 3

LOT 2LOT 1

LOT 1

BL
K.

2

BL
K.

1

GA
TE

WA
Y C

ITY
SU

BD
.

17

16
15
14

13
12
11
10
9
8
7
6
5
4

3

2

1

UNIT No.1

2

G & M SUBD.

HOMESITES

COLLEGE

UNIT No.1

2

UN
IT 

No
.2

T2100-00-273-0015-

T2
10

0-0
0-2

73
-00

11-

T2100-00-273-0010-

T2100-00-273-0007-

-08

-01

-02

-06

-08

-12
-11

8 6

5

4

3

2

1

6 5 4 3 2 1

260
21 3 5 4

1112 10 9 8

6

7

269
21 3 5 4

1112 10 9 8

6

7

304
21 3 5 4

1112 10 9 8

6

7

21 3 5 4

1112 10 9 8
313

6

7

1

348
21 3 5 4

1112 10 9 8

21 3 5 4

6

7

6

357
1112 10 9 8

21 3 5 4

7

6

1112 10 9
392

5 4 3 2 1

1

23 1

212019

2324 22

1 2 3 4 5 6

1011 9 8 7

141617 15 13

9532 4 76 8

1110 12

261

268

19
18
17
16
15
14
13
12
11
10
9
8
7
6
5
4
3

3

4

5

6

29

SOUTHWEST ADDITION

6 45 3 2 1

6

2

123456

WOOD SUBDIVISION24 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16 15 14 13 12 10 5678911

WESTVIEW PLACE
171615141312

31 30 29 28 27 26

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 1121 3

42 4041 3839 37 3536 3334 32

1 2 3 54 6 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 6

12 11 10 9 8 7 12 1011 9 8 7 12 1011 9 8 7

18 1617 15 14 13 18 141617 15 13 18 141617 15 13

1 2 43 65 87 109 1211 1 9532 4 76 8

1110 12 1 9532 4 76 8

1110 12

264 263 262

267266265

UNIT No.2

11121314151617181920

21 22 2423 25 26 27 28 29 30

VALLEYVIEW SUBDIVISION

12345678910
11

12
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

STYRON SUBD.

MAVERICK SUBD.

HINOJOSA

4

18

25

12

18

1

WEST ADDITION TO EDINBURG

5

15

10

1
2

47

13

4 2

N.C.N.B. S
UBDIVISION

LOT 1
LOT 2

1

1234

2

4 3

1C

1B

1A

65

66

6

LO
T6

LO
T7

1112 10 9 8 7 6

2318

9

3

8 7 6 5

20

19

14

13
12 11

22

21

10 9 8
7

6

5

4

10987

4 3 2 1

5

UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS - PAN AMERICAN

1

2

UNIVERSITY PLAZA

LOT 1

SLUMDAWG

6 4 52 3

225
71012 11 9 8

1

78

SAN BENITO

BANK & TRUST

NO.1LOT 1

EDINBURG
GOLDEN CHICK

LOT 1

W  U N I V E R S I T Y  D R
W  U N I V E R S I T Y  D R

W  C A N O  S T

W  F AY  S T

S 
SU

G
AR

 R
D

W  K U H N  S T

W  S A M A N O  S T

W  M A H L  S T

S 
4T

H 
AV

E

S 
2 N

D
 A

V E

S  
1 S

T  
A V

E

S 
3R

D
 A

VE

S  
J O

E  
O

C
H O

A  
A V

E

N 
SU

G
A

R 
R

D

N  4
T H  A

V E

W  C H A M P I O N  S T

W  S A M A N O  S T

W  S T U B B S  S T

W  F AY  S T

®
1 in = 400 ft

ZONING MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
RICARDO CABALLERO/ 1126 WEST CANO STREET

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

ZONING DISTRICTS
AGRICULTURE
AUTO-URBAN RESIDENTIAL
COMMERCIAL, GENERAL
COMMERCIAL, NEIGHBORHOOD
DOWNTOWN DISTRICT
INDUSTRIAL
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 5
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 7.1
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION MH
SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL
URBAN RESIDENTIAL
URBAN UNIVERSITY
CITY LIMITS



CO
ND

OS
MA

NO
R

ED
IN

BU
RG

E3200-00-00I-0005-00

12

1726 25 24 23 22 21 20 19 18 17A 16 15 13 12 11 10 9 8 7 6 5 4 3
2
1

LO
T1

A

314
4 51 2 3

4

9

1 2 3

1012 11
303

1 2 3

10
12 11

12 11

1

SUBDIVISIONBIGGS

SUBD.
CARWASH
CARWASH

SU
BD

.
SU

GA
R 

PL
AZ

A

SUBDIVISION

LOT 4 LOT 3

LOT 2LOT 1

LOT 1

BL
K.

2

BL
K.

1

GA
TE

WA
Y C

ITY
SU

BD
.

17

16
15
14

13
12
11
10
9
8
7
6
5
4

3

2

1

UNIT No.1

2

G & M SUBD.

HOMESITES

COLLEGE

UNIT No.1

2

UN
IT 

No
.2

T2100-00-273-0015-

T2
10

0-0
0-2

73
-00

11-

T2100-00-273-0010-

T2100-00-273-0007-

-08

-01

-02

-06

-08

-12
-11

8 6

5

4

3

2

1

6 5 4 3 2 1

260
21 3 5 4

1112 10 9 8

6

7

269
21 3 5 4

1112 10 9 8

6

7

304
21 3 5 4

1112 10 9 8

6

7

21 3 5 4

1112 10 9 8
313

6

7

1

348
21 3 5 4

1112 10 9 8

21 3 5 4

6

7

6

357
1112 10 9 8

21 3 5 4

7

6

1112 10 9
392

5 4 3 2 1

1

23 1

212019

2324 22

1 2 3 4 5 6

1011 9 8 7

141617 15 13

9532 4 76 8

1110 12

261

268

19
18
17
16
15
14
13
12
11
10
9
8
7
6
5
4
3

3

4

5

6

29

SOUTHWEST ADDITION

6 45 3 2 1

6

2

123456

WOOD SUBDIVISION24 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16 15 14 13 12 10 5678911

WESTVIEW PLACE
171615141312

31 30 29 28 27 26

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 1121 3

42 4041 3839 37 3536 3334 32

1 2 3 54 6 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 6

12 11 10 9 8 7 12 1011 9 8 7 12 1011 9 8 7

18 1617 15 14 13 18 141617 15 13 18 141617 15 13

1 2 43 65 87 109 1211 1 9532 4 76 8

1110 12 1 9532 4 76 8

1110 12

264 263 262

267266265

UNIT No.2

11121314151617181920

21 22 2423 25 26 27 28 29 30

VALLEYVIEW SUBDIVISION

12345678910
11

12
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

STYRON SUBD.

MAVERICK SUBD.

HINOJOSA

4

18

25

12

18

1

WEST ADDITION TO EDINBURG

5

15

10

1
2

47

13

4 2

N.C.N.B. S
UBDIVISION

LOT 1
LOT 2

1

1234

2

4 3

1C

1B

1A

65

66

6

LO
T6

LO
T7

1112 10 9 8 7 6

2318

9

3

8 7 6 5

20

19

14

13
12 11

22

21

10 9 8
7

6

5

4

10987

4 3 2 1

5

UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS - PAN AMERICAN

1

2

UNIVERSITY PLAZA

LOT 1

SLUMDAWG

6 4 52 3

225
71012 11 9 8

1

78

SAN BENITO

BANK & TRUST

NO.1LOT 1

EDINBURG
GOLDEN CHICK

LOT 1

W  U N I V E R S I T Y  D R
W  U N I V E R S I T Y  D R

W  C A N O  S T

W  F AY  S T

S 
SU

G
AR

 R
D

W  K U H N  S T

W  S A M A N O  S T

W  M A H L  S T

S 
4T

H 
AV

E

S 
2 N

D
 A

V E

S  
1 S

T  
A V

E

S 
3R

D
 A

VE

S  
J O

E  
O

C
H O

A  
A V

E

N 
SU

G
A

R 
R

D

N  4
T H  A

V E

W  C H A M P I O N  S T

W  S A M A N O  S T

W  S T U B B S  S T

W  F AY  S T

®
1 in = 400 ft

MAILOUT AND SITE MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
RICARDO CABALLERO/ 1126 WEST CANO STREET

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE
300FT NOTIFICATION
CITY LIMITS





dcolina
Rectangle





Zoning Board of Adjustment 
Site Photos for meeting of February 23, 2022 

RICARDO CABALLERO - 1126 WEST CANO STREET 



  

Variance Request 

 

GLENDA GARCIA  Page 1 

Planning & Zoning Staff Report  Prepared on:  February 7, 2022  

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT  Regular Meeting:  February 23, 2022  

Agenda Item 8F 

Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Section 3.303, Multifamily Lot and 

Building Standards, Setbacks, a 0.776 acre tract of land out of Lot 26, Kelly-Pharr Subdivision, 

located at 1420 West Wisconsin Road, as requested by Glenda Garcia on behalf of Moses 

Ashukem. 

 

Request  

The applicant is requesting a variance to the City’s Unified Development Code (UDC), Section 

3.303, as it applies to multifamily residential setbacks. The applicant is proposing to reduce the 

rear setback for the building area, by 50% of UDC requirements.  

Property Location and Vicinity  

The property is located on the south side of West Wisconsin Road, approximately 360 ft. east of 

South Sugar Road.  Zoning for this property is Urban Residential (UR) District. Adjacent zoning is 

Neighborhood Conservation (NC7.1) District to the north, east, and west, and Neighborhood 

Conservation 5 (NC5) District to the south. Surrounding land uses are residential with some 

vacant land.  

Background and History  

The previous owner Subhash & Sarojini Bose, LP, received a Certificate of Compliance in 2013. 

The applicant is proposing to develop a multifamily residential development consisting of 14 

units.  

A street right-of-way (ROW) of 80 ft. is required for West Wisconsin Road. An additional 10 ft. 

ROW dedication is required for this project. A variance application with was submitted to the City 

on February 2, 2021 to reduce the rear setbacks from 20 ft. to 10 ft. to adjust for the required 

ROW. 

Staff mailed notice of this variance request to 46 neighboring property owners. No comments in 

favor and two against this request had been received at the time this report was prepared. 

Analysis 

The property has 162 ft. of frontage on West Wisconsin Road and 180 ft. of depth for a total lot 

area of 29,160 sq. ft. The Rio Grande Valley Metropolitan Planning Organization (RGV/MPO) 

classifies West Wisconsin Road as an Existing Collector Street. UDC Section 8.204 and Engineering 

standards require a minimum of 80 ft. of ROW (40 ft. per side) for this class of street. Plans 

submitted by the applicant anticipated 60 ft. of ROW (30’ per side) for this development. The 



Planning & Zoning Staff Report 

 

GLENDA GARCIA  Page 2 

applicant is proposing to reduce the rear yard setback from 20 ft. to 10 ft. to accommodate the 

additional ROW required. UDC Section 3.303 requires a minimum rear yard setback of 20 ft. for 

multifamily residential developments in the Urban Residential (UR) District. The proposed 10 ft. 

setbacks are 50% below minimum UDC standards. 

Recommendation 

Staff recommends disapproval of this request. Reduction of the required 20 ft. setback would 

leave inadequate spacing between the proposed multifamily development and the existing 

single-family residences to the south. The applicant may revise the site plan or may consider 

reducing building size to respect the required setback. No hardship or extraordinary conditions 

have been established to justify approval of this variance as is required by UDC Section 14.404(D). 

If approved, the applicant will need to comply with all other requirements during the permitting 

process. If approved, $40 fee, payable to the County of Hidalgo, County Clerk’s Office, for the 

recording of the ZBA order is also required. A location map, aerial map, photo, subdivision plat, 

site plan, and application from the property owner are attached for the Board’s consideration. 

 

Prepared by: Approved by: 

Adan A. Elizondo, MPA Kimberly A. Mendoza, MPA  

Planner I Director of Planning & Zoning 

 



S A G E  L N

CO
PP

ER
M

IN
E

AV
E

N A U T I C A L  L N

E V A
S T

J U L I A N
C I R

S 
SU

G
AR

 R
D

N O R A  D R

S 
SU

G
AR

 R
D

VA
LL

E 
CI

R

BI
AN

C
A 

ST

VA
L L

E  
C I

R

TO
FF

E E
L N

PL
A

ZA
CI

R

CA
M

PA
N

A R
I O

C I
R

IL
LE

A
N

A 
ST

S T
E R

R
A

C I
R

BU
EN

O
S 

A
IR

ES
 S

T

HU
IS

AC
HE

AV
E

S 
SU

G
AR

 R
D

I N T E R N A T I O N A L  S T

O
CE

A
N

VI
EW

 D
R

CU
A

R
ZO

 S
T

ES
M

ER
A

LD
A

ST

CA
R

SO
N

 S
T

N O R A  D R

SA
M

G
A

R
ST

W  W I S C O N S I N  R D

S T  C L A I R E  A V E

I R O N G A T E
D R

W  W I S C O N S I N  R D

G L O R I A  A N N  D R

M O N T R E A L  S T

R I O  D E  J A N E I R O

VA L P A R A I S O

C A N D Y  L N

S W E E T  L N

R I C C O  S T

E V A  S T

R E D  R I V E R  A V E

D U L C I N E A  A V E

T I E R R A  D U L C E  D R

AM
A

ND
O

 S
T

®
1 in = 400 ft

AERIAL MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
GLENDA GARCIA - KELLY PHARR

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE
CITY LIMITS



11
-27

-31

K2
40

0-0
0-0

00
-00

11
-

LOT 1

-20

-12

-08

-07
-06

-09

-05

1

AN
AR

EY
 SU

BD
IVI

SIO
N

J5000
JEN-ANI A

JIMENEZ

19
18

147.61 95
.06

30 .07

123.44

85
.65

60
.59

60
.00

SUBD.

FO
UR A'S ESTATES

THE DE LEON

-31

-35

112

37-11

37-11-05

-00

-10

-06

-11

-07

-04

LO
T A

20

19

18

17

1615
14

13

10

11

12

12
11

9
10

8
7
6
5
4

1
2
3

211

4 13 171614 155 9 1211106 87

4645 47 53

60

52 21
20

5654 55

59 58

19
18

51

646667
65

6162

35 34

6368

36

5049

24252628 27

23
22

32 29303133

57

48

321

40

43
4244

39

3738

41

1

C 
& Y

SUGARLAND ESTATES

VIA DULCE7
6 5 4 3 2 1

ACRES
HEAVENLY 

LOS GRANJENOS6

8

7

9

10

1

2

3

5

4

131211 1514
REYES/GUERRERO

2
1

CANTON BUS. CENTER

7

9
10
11
12

8

17

16

1827

28
29

30 14
15 13

L O T   AL O T   BL O T   CL O T   DL O T   EL O T   FL O T   GL O T   HL O T   IL O T   JL O T   KL O T   L

-29

-03

-25

-02

-10 -11 -12 -09 -13 -14 -23

K2400-00-000-0022-

K2
40

0-0
0-0

00
-00

27
-

K2400-00-000-0026-

K2400-00-000-0039- K2400-00-000-0038-

K2400-00-000-0040-

K2400-00-000-0010-00

K2400-00-000-0024--10

-09

LO
RI

N 
LO

ON
EY

 R
UN

NE
LS

-08

-10

-15

-16

-04

-02

-00

-17

-10

-03

-07

-25

-08 -09 -27

LANTANA ESTATES

SUBDIVISION
1

64

63
62
61
60
59

2 3 4

116 115

5 6 7 8

91 92

90 89

65 66

94

114 113

93 95

87

68

88

67

86

69

53

118

58

57
56

55

54

117

4344

45 46

42 41

47
48

49
52 51 50

159 10 11 12 13 14

111 110

96 97

109 108

98 99

85 84

70 71

83
82

72 73

106107

100

105

101 102

81

74

80 79

75 76

16 17 18

19

103

104

21
20

22

78

77

23

24
25
26

40
39

38

27
28
29

37

36

30
31
32

33
35 34

34
33

38

35
36
37

39

24
23
22
21
20
19
18
17
16
15
14
13

12
11
10
9
8
7
6
5
4
3
2
1

12345678910111213

26252423222120191817161514

12345678910111213

26252423222120191817161514

12345678910111213

WISCONSIN ROAD

WI
SC

ON
SIN

 SU
BD

19

20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33

34

18

17
16
15
14
13
12
11
10
9
8
7
6
5
4
3
2
1

CA
NT

ON
 PA

RK
 ES

TA
TE

S

19

20

18 17 16

15

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

17

16 8

9

10

PAN AMERICAN TERRACEBL
OC

K 1

BL
OC

K 5

BLOCK 4

BLOCK 2

14

26252423222120191817161514

12345678910111213

26252423222120191817161514

12345678910111213

10
11
12
13

15
16
17
18

9
8
7
6
5
4
3
2
1

10
9
8
7
6
5
4
3
2
1

45678910

32116151413 DULCE REAL ESTATES

SOUTH SUGAR TERRACE

11
12
13
14
15
16

17

18
19 20

1

26

2

25

3

24

4

23

5

22

6

21

7

20

8

19

9

18

10

17

11

16

12

15

13

14

1

8 7

2

6

3

5

4

323130292827262524232221 33 34 35 36 37

432113121110987654321

BLOCK  A

BLOCK  B

BLOCK  C

BLOCK  F

BLOCK  G

TIERRA DULCE SUBD 1

28
29
30
31

2345678910111213

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27

13 14 15

19

18

17

16

9

10

11

12

AD
VE

NT
IST

 EN
GL

ISH
 C

HU
RC

H
ED

IN
BU

RG
 SE

VE
N 

DA
Y

5758596061626364656667686970717273
56
55
54
53
52
51
50
49

484746
45
44
43
42
4140

39
38
37
36

353433
32
31
30
29
2827

26
25
24
23

222120
19
18
17
16
1514

13
12
11
10

987
6
5
4
3

74 EL CAMPANARIO

21

24
22

23

10

40
38

27

39

26

5 4
CONCORD PLAZA SUBDIVISION

S A G E  L N

CO
PP

ER
M

IN
E

AV
E

N A U T I C A L  L N

E V A
S T

J U L I A N
C I R

S 
SU

G
AR

 R
D

N O R A  D R

S 
SU

G
AR

 R
D

VA
LL

E 
CI

R

BI
AN

C
A 

ST

VA
L L

E  
C I

R

TO
FF

E E
L N

PL
A

ZA
CI

R

CA
M

PA
N

A R
I O

C I
R

IL
LE

A
N

A 
ST

S T
E R

R
A

C I
R

BU
EN

O
S 

A
IR

ES
 S

T

HU
IS

AC
HE

AV
E

S 
SU

G
AR

 R
D

I N T E R N A T I O N A L  S T

O
CE

A
N

VI
EW

 D
R

CU
A

R
ZO

 S
T

ES
M

ER
A

LD
A

ST

CA
R

SO
N

 S
T

N O R A  D R

SA
M

G
A

R
ST

W  W I S C O N S I N  R D

S T  C L A I R E  A V E

I R O N G A T E
D R

W  W I S C O N S I N  R D

G L O R I A  A N N  D R

M O N T R E A L  S T

R I O  D E  J A N E I R O

VA L P A R A I S O

C A N D Y  L N

S W E E T  L N

R I C C O  S T

E V A  S T

R E D  R I V E R  A V E

D U L C I N E A  A V E

T I E R R A  D U L C E  D R

AM
A

ND
O

 S
T

®
1 in = 400 ft

ZONING MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
GLENDA GARCIA - KELLY PHARR

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

ZONING DISTRICTS
AGRICULTURE
AUTO-URBAN RESIDENTIAL
COMMERCIAL, GENERAL
COMMERCIAL, NEIGHBORHOOD
DOWNTOWN DISTRICT
INDUSTRIAL
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 5
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 7.1
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION MH
SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL
URBAN RESIDENTIAL
URBAN UNIVERSITY
CITY LIMITS



11
-27

-31

K2
40

0-0
0-0

00
-00

11
-

LOT 1

-20

-12

-08

-07
-06

-09

-05

1

AN
AR

EY
 SU

BD
IVI

SIO
N

J5000
JEN-ANI A

JIMENEZ

19
18

147.61 95
.06

30 .07

123.44

85
.65

60
.59

60
.00

SUBD.

FO
UR A'S ESTATES

THE DE LEON

-31

-35

112

37-11

37-11-05

-00

-10

-06

-11

-07

-04

LO
T A

20

19

18

17

1615
14

13

10

11

12

12
11

9
10

8
7
6
5
4

1
2
3

211

4 13 171614 155 9 1211106 87

4645 47 53

60

52 21
20

5654 55

59 58

19
18

51

646667
65

6162

35 34

6368

36

5049

24252628 27

23
22

32 29303133

57

48

321

40

43
4244

39

3738

41

1

C 
& Y

SUGARLAND ESTATES

VIA DULCE7
6 5 4 3 2 1

ACRES
HEAVENLY 

LOS GRANJENOS6

8

7

9

10

1

2

3

5

4

131211 1514
REYES/GUERRERO

2
1

CANTON BUS. CENTER

7

9
10
11
12

8

17

16

1827

28
29

30 14
15 13

L O T   AL O T   BL O T   CL O T   DL O T   EL O T   FL O T   GL O T   HL O T   IL O T   JL O T   KL O T   L

-29

-03

-25

-02

-10 -11 -12 -09 -13 -14 -23

K2400-00-000-0022-

K2
40

0-0
0-0

00
-00

27
-

K2400-00-000-0026-

K2400-00-000-0039- K2400-00-000-0038-

K2400-00-000-0040-

K2400-00-000-0010-00

K2400-00-000-0024--10

-09

LO
RI

N 
LO

ON
EY

 R
UN

NE
LS

-08

-10

-15

-16

-04

-02

-00

-17

-10

-03

-07

-25

-08 -09 -27

LANTANA ESTATES

SUBDIVISION
1

64

63
62
61
60
59

2 3 4

116 115

5 6 7 8

91 92

90 89

65 66

94

114 113

93 95

87

68

88

67

86

69

53

118

58

57
56

55

54

117

4344

45 46

42 41

47
48

49
52 51 50

159 10 11 12 13 14

111 110

96 97

109 108

98 99

85 84

70 71

83
82

72 73

106107

100

105

101 102

81

74

80 79

75 76

16 17 18

19

103

104

21
20

22

78

77

23

24
25
26

40
39

38

27
28
29

37

36

30
31
32

33
35 34

34
33

38

35
36
37

39

24
23
22
21
20
19
18
17
16
15
14
13

12
11
10
9
8
7
6
5
4
3
2
1

12345678910111213

26252423222120191817161514

12345678910111213

26252423222120191817161514

12345678910111213

WISCONSIN ROAD

WI
SC

ON
SIN

 SU
BD

19

20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33

34

18

17
16
15
14
13
12
11
10
9
8
7
6
5
4
3
2
1

CA
NT

ON
 PA

RK
 ES

TA
TE

S

19

20

18 17 16

15

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

17

16 8

9

10

PAN AMERICAN TERRACEBL
OC

K 1

BL
OC

K 5

BLOCK 4

BLOCK 2

14

26252423222120191817161514

12345678910111213

26252423222120191817161514

12345678910111213

10
11
12
13

15
16
17
18

9
8
7
6
5
4
3
2
1

10
9
8
7
6
5
4
3
2
1

45678910

32116151413 DULCE REAL ESTATES

SOUTH SUGAR TERRACE

11
12
13
14
15
16

17

18
19 20

1

26

2

25

3

24

4

23

5

22

6

21

7

20

8

19

9

18

10

17

11

16

12

15

13

14

1

8 7

2

6

3

5

4

323130292827262524232221 33 34 35 36 37

432113121110987654321

BLOCK  A

BLOCK  B

BLOCK  C

BLOCK  F

BLOCK  G

TIERRA DULCE SUBD 1

28
29
30
31

2345678910111213

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27

13 14 15

19

18

17

16

9

10

11

12

AD
VE

NT
IST

 EN
GL

ISH
 C

HU
RC

H
ED

IN
BU

RG
 SE

VE
N 

DA
Y

5758596061626364656667686970717273
56
55
54
53
52
51
50
49

484746
45
44
43
42
4140

39
38
37
36

353433
32
31
30
29
2827

26
25
24
23

222120
19
18
17
16
1514

13
12
11
10

987
6
5
4
3

74 EL CAMPANARIO

21

24
22

23

10

40
38

27

39

26

5 4
CONCORD PLAZA SUBDIVISION

S A G E  L N

CO
PP

ER
M

IN
E

AV
E

N A U T I C A L  L N

E V A
S T

J U L I A N
C I R

S 
SU

G
AR

 R
D

N O R A  D R

S 
SU

G
AR

 R
D

VA
LL

E 
CI

R

BI
AN

C
A 

ST

VA
L L

E  
C I

R

TO
FF

E E
L N

PL
A

ZA
CI

R

CA
M

PA
N

A R
I O

C I
R

IL
LE

A
N

A 
ST

S T
E R

R
A

C I
R

BU
EN

O
S 

A
IR

ES
 S

T

HU
IS

AC
HE

AV
E

S 
SU

G
AR

 R
D

I N T E R N A T I O N A L  S T

O
CE

A
N

VI
EW

 D
R

CU
A

R
ZO

 S
T

ES
M

ER
A

LD
A

ST

CA
R

SO
N

 S
T

N O R A  D R

SA
M

G
A

R
ST

W  W I S C O N S I N  R D

S T  C L A I R E  A V E

I R O N G A T E
D R

W  W I S C O N S I N  R D

G L O R I A  A N N  D R

M O N T R E A L  S T

R I O  D E  J A N E I R O

VA L P A R A I S O

C A N D Y  L N

S W E E T  L N

R I C C O  S T

E V A  S T

R E D  R I V E R  A V E

D U L C I N E A  A V E

T I E R R A  D U L C E  D R

AM
A

ND
O

 S
T

®
1 in = 400 ft

MAILOUT AND SITE MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
GLENDA GARCIA - KELLY PHARR

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE
300FT NOTIFICATION
CITY LIMITS





M2

MS

FF

E
D

IN
B

U
R

G
, T

E
X

A
S

14
00

 W
IS

C
O

N
S

IN
 R

D
. 

M
U

LT
I-

F
A

M
IL

Y
F

IR
M

 R
E

G
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

 #
 F

-1
95

45

w
w

w
.m

2e
ng

in
ee

rs
.c

om

95
6.

60
0.

86
28

18
10

 E
. G

R
IF

F
IN

 P
A

R
K

W
A

Y

M
IS

SI
O

N
, T

X
 7

85
72

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 P
A

V
IN

G
 &

 D
IM

E
N

S
IO

N
A

L
 P

LA
N

3.1

SCALE: 1"=10'

SCALE: 1"=10'

LEGEND

WISCONSIN RD.



Zoning Board of Adjustment 
Site Photos for meeting of February 23, 2022 

GLENDA GARCIA - MOSES ASHUKEM



Edint5ijF4
NOTIFICATION

Dear  Property  Owner:

A public hearing will  be held on Wednesday, February 23, 2022, at 4:00 P.M. in the Edinburg  City  Hall,  City

Council Chambers, located at 415 West University  Drive, at which time the Zoning  Board  of  Adjustment  will
consider  the following:

CONSIDER  VARIANCE  TO THE CITY'S  UNIFIED  DEVELOPMENT  CODE, SECTION  3.303,

MULTIFAMILY  LOT  AND  BUILDING  ST ANDARDS,  SETBACKS,  A 0.776 ACRE  TRACT  OF  LAND

OUT OF LOT  26, KELLY-PHARR  SUBDIVISION,  LOCATED  AT 1420 WEST  WISCONSIN  ROAD,

AS REQUESTED  BY GLENDA  GARCIA  ON BEHALF  OF MOSES  ASHUKEM

The variance requested would allow for the construction of a multifamily  develo.Q  %t  into the required
20- foot  rear  yard  setback.

All property owners within  300 ft. of  the subject property are sent this notice. The City  is using  this  notice  to

solicit  your  input,  but no action or response is required.  Please note that the meeting  date, time,  and agenda

are subject to change. Please call on the date of  the meeting to verify  an item will  proceed  as planned.  Shorild  you

have any questions or need more information  regarding this  notice,  you  may  call  (956)  388-8202.

You  may  return  your  response  by  one of  the following:

:> MAIL:  P. 0.  Box  1079  Edinburg,  Texas  78540

>  FAX:  (956)  292-2080  by Tuesday,  February  22, 2022

> EMAIL:  planning@,cityofedinburg.com  by Tuesday, February 22, 2022

Please check the appropriate box to indicate if  you are in favor, against, or have no comments  on this  request.

[1 In Favor/A Favor ;A  Against/En Contra € NO Comments/No Comentario
Comments:

State: g%  Zip: lh3  /c
NOTIFICACION

Si tiene preguntas o necesita informaci6n  sobre esta aplicaci6n en espafiol, por favor Ilame al 956-388-8202.

Planning  and Zoning  Department
City of Edinburg
PO BOX 1079
Edinburg, TX 78540-1079

EDINBURG

CITY  HALL

415 WEST  {JNNERSITY  DR

University  Dr.  (S.H.107)





01
/2

0/
22

Alex Rios - Chairperson A
Eddie Garza - Vice Chairperson P
Andre Maldonado - Regular P
George Cardenas - Regular A
Diane Teter - Regular P
Ponciano Longoria - Alternate P
Marc Moran - Alternate P
Michael Cantu - Alternate P
Vacant

2022 ATTENDANCE RECORD                                                                                                      
ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS COMMISSION MEETINGS


	Zoning Board of Adjustments - February 23, 2022
	 Consider approval of the Minutes for the January 20, 2022 Regular Meeting
	 Consider Variances to the City's Unified Development Code: 1) Section 3.301, Single Family Residential Bulk Standards, Setbacks, and 2) Section 3.505, Easements and Utilities, Lot 24, Block 2, Olivia Estates Subdivision Section 2, located at 3719 Ora Street, as requested by Ringo G. Trevi&ntilde;o
	 Aerial Map
	 Zoning Map
	 Mailout and Site Map
	 Application
	 Plat
	 Site Plan
	 Site Photo
	 Notification Response

	 Consider Variance to the City's Unified Development Code, Section 2.301 (D) (9), Fences Facing or Abutting a Golf Course, Lot 4, Los Lagos Phase III Subdivision, located at 3321 Macquarie Drive, as requested by Adrian Guzman
	 Aerial Map
	 Zoning Map
	 Mailout and Site Map
	 Application
	 Plat
	 Site Plan
	 Site Photo

	 Consider Variance to the City's Unified Development Code, Section 3.201(C), Residential Use District Standards, Density, Lots 1 and 2, Stonebrook Estates Subdivision, located at 2002 & 2008 Brandi Lane, as requested by Erica Edith Canales
	 Aerial Map
	 Zoning Map
	 Mailout & Site Map
	 Application
	 Plat
	 Survey - Lot 1
	 Survey - Lot 2
	 Site Map
	 Site Photos

	 Consider Variances to the City's Unified Development Code: 1) Section 3.201(C), Density; 2) Section 3.303, Multifamily Lot and Building Standards, Lot Area; 3) Section 3.303 Multifamily Lot and Building Standards, Lot Width; 4) Section 10.405, Parking Lot Bufferyards; and 5) Section 9.301, Parking Space Standards, Driving Aisle Width, Lot 18, Block 263, West Addition to Edinburg Subdivision, located at 1021 West Cano Street, as requested by Ricardo Caballero 
	 Aerial Map
	 Zoning Map
	 Mailout & Site Map
	 Application
	 Plat
	 Site Plan
	 Site Photo

	 Consider Variances to the City's Unified Development Code: 1) Section 3.201(C), Density; 2) Section 3.303, Multifamily Lot and Building Standards, Lot Area; 3) Section 3.303 Multifamily Lot and Building Standards, Lot Width; 4) Section 10.405, Parking Lot Bufferyards; and 5) Section 9.301, Parking Space Standards, Driving Aisle Width, Lot 1, Block 265, West Addition to Edinburg Subdivision, located at 1126 West Cano Street, as requested by Ricardo Caballero
	 Aerial Map
	 Zoning Map
	 Mailout & Site Map
	 Application
	 Plat
	 Site Plan
	 Site Photo

	 Consider Variance to the City's Unified Development Code, Section 3.303, Multifamily Lot and Building Standards, Setbacks, a 0.776 acre tract of land out of Lot 26, Kelly-Pharr Subdivision, located at 1420 West Wisconsin Road, as requested by Glenda Garcia on behalf of Moses Ashukem
	 Aerial Map
	 Zoning Map
	 Mailout & Site Map
	 Application
	 Site Plan
	 Site Photo
	 Notification Response

	 Attendance Roster



